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ABOUT Champion Technology
(STOCK CODE: 92)

Champion Technology Holdings Limited
(“Champion Technology” or the “Company”)
(www.championtechnology.com) together with
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is a global technology
group offering innovative solutions in communications
software, wireless, telematics, e-commerce, security,
online entertainment and e-gaming. The Group’s
solutions are dedicated to bettering and enriching
the lives and lifestyles of people, promoting health
consciousness, accident prevention and life safety, and
additionally promoting probity and responsibility in the
conduct of the online industry.

Throughout the years, the Group has focused on
industries supported by government policies. In line with
China’s national policy to promote its culture industry,
the Group has expanded its activities in culture-related
technologies and related services, and has developed
a portfolio of customised solutions and comprehensive
e-commerce capabilities in the sales, marketing and
promotion of art, antiques, cultural products and
collectibles for the consumer market.

With total assets of over HK$9 billion and a global
presence in over 50 markets, the Group serves its
customers through its network of regional offices and
distributors, and three Hong Kong listed companies,
namely Champion Technology and Kantone Holdings
Limited, whose shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Exchange”), and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM, whose
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Exchange. The Group also includes a UK subsidiary
previously listed on the London Stock Exchange.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MERE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—2--fF —F——% —F-TF _FTTNF —TEN\F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FET FHET FHT FHT FHT
Results 4
(for the year ended 30 June) (BEAAZTHLEE)
— Turnover — gt 3,410,999 37125455 3,011,768 2,923,103 3,635,049
— Adjusted profit* —SE A () 202,053 161,166 209,830 402,068 992,741
— Adjusted EBITDA* —KRFAFIE B ER 1468486 1447544 1,297,733 1,300,914 1,729,455
B BA(EHR)
— EBITDA —RETAFIE - BB HER 1,364,312 1,381,824 1,211,933 1,002,064 991,929
B2 BF
— Attributable profit —EREF 62,478 56,763 88,649 74,630 190,456
— Dividends —RE 24,261 43,251 22,274 19,968 48,112
— Earnings per share (in HK cents) —GREFRCENL) 1.04 1.15 214 2.24 6.91
Financial Position BRI
(as at 30 June) (RAB=+R)
— Cash and cash equivalents* ~-ReRBLEE 280,101 465,247 278,611 322,706 350,728
— Total assets —-BERE 9,327,509 9,349,104 8,967,425 8,871,166 8,446,159
— Equity — 7,450,716 7,382,232 7,062,277 6,973,345 6,685,006
Financial Ratios Bt ®
(as at 30 June) (RAB=+R)
— Current assets/Current liabilities —REBEE/REAR 5.95 3.48 2.91 3.36 3.13
— Assets/Equity —BE/fEm 1.25 1.27 1.27 1.27 1.26
— Sales/Assets —REEBE 0.37 0.33 0.34 0.33 0.43
— Gearing ratio — B R 0.03 0.05 0.06 0.06 0.04
* Excluding impairment, fair value change of convertible bonds and * Rt ARME - TRREFAFEEEHRAMIREER
other non-cash items
* Excluding overdrafts * TEIEES
Twenty Years of Sustained Profitability BE—TFERISER
(in HK$ million) (B8#T)
Adjusted EBITDA
RetAFIE BB IrE R 85 (EA%) 1,729
= EBITDA
REAFB B - T E R 2 B
- - %;E%t;?le profit 1,441 1448 1468
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

This year marks Champion Technology’s

20th anniversary since its public listing

on the Exchange on 19 August 1992.

In the span of 20 years, Champion
Technology has grown from its humble beginnings as a
software systems house to a global technology group
with presence in 50 markets. From a home-grown
company with roots in Hong Kong, we have evolved into
a global establishment.

Since IPO in 1992, along with expansion on its business
and geographical dimensions, the Champion Technology  Striking the Gong to mark 20th Listing Anniversary
family has also grown in size to embrace three listed Left: Dr. Paul Kan, Chairman of Champion Technology Group

) . . Right: Mr. Leo Kan, CEO of Champion Technology Group
companies under the corporate tree: Champion
Technology (stock code: 92) and Kantone Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1059), both are listed on the Main Board; and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (stock code: 8007),
which is listed on the GEM Board. If we take into account of our UK-based subsidiary Multitone which was acquired by
Champion Technology and privatised off the London Stock Exchange in 1993, the Group holds four listed companies in
total.

| am grateful today to report that the Group’s assets have surpassed HK$9 billion. We have achieved sustained
profitability year after year despite global uncertainties; we have maintained a record of uninterrupted dividend
payments, and we are a leading information technology group providing creative, innovative and customised products,
services and solutions to customers worldwide. What is more, we are committed to good corporate citizenship through
participating in, and spearheading projects in the health, cultural and environmental sectors to help build our earth a
better place to live, and hopefully fill our universe with Peace and Harmony.

BUSINESS SURVIVES IN UNCERTAIN TIMES

The past two decades coincided with the most exciting time in the history of Hong Kong, most notably the return
of Hong Kong to Chinese rule in 1997, followed by continued prosperity and stability under the “One Country, Two
Systems”. Despite the ups and downs, the smooth integration is evidenced by Hong Kong maintaining its place as
China’s most cosmopolitan city and the financial centre of the region; while China has speeded up its reforms and
become the world’s second largest economy, opening up opportunities for all of us.

The period was also marked by a series of disturbing events and economic downturn quite beyond anyone’s control;
among which were the stringent austerity measures in China in 1994 and 1995; the financial turmoil in Asia in 1997; the
burst of the internet bubble in 2000; the sudden outbreak of SARS in 2003; the US sub-prime crisis followed by global
credit crunch in 2007 and 2008; and the worsening Euro Zone debt crisis since 2010, all of which resulted in confidence
crisis and a slowdown of the global economy.

It is difficult to predict how the current Euro Zone debt crisis will evolve, but for each of the previous crises, Champion
Technology has managed to emerge relatively unscathed, which may be testament to how we build on our prudent
foundations and manage business risks on a long-term basis. By continuing with our prudent financial management,
we hope to be able to cope with the ongoing turbulent environment, and most importantly, to continue to invest in our
businesses and serve our customers well. Nonetheless, we are conscious of increasingly different macro-economic
dynamics that may emerge from time to time, and may affect the performance of global corporations, ourselves
included.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Uncertainties in the business climate continue to depress levels of public and private sector spending. Such market
conditions have slowed the pace of development of many businesses, including our Group, and continue to put
pressure on our profit margins. Group profit was also impacted by impairment losses arising from its investments in
compliance with international accounting standards to review the carrying values of financial assets as compared to
the estimated cash flow or recoverable amounts from these assets. Excluding such impairment, the Group’s results
registered positive growth.

For the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group’s financial performance is summarised as below:

. Turnover increased 9% to HK$3,411 million

° Profit for the year rose 3% to HK$98 million

o Adjusted EBITDA (excluding impairment) went up 1% to HK$1,468 million
o Profit attributable to owners of the Company grew 10% to HK$62 million
° Earnings per share was HK1.04 cents

Notwithstanding a slower momentum, the Group’s performance is in line with expectations. It maintains a positive
financial position with net cash, adheres to a prudent financial management policy, and does not enter into speculative
derivatives or structured product transactions.

FINAL DIVIDEND

In anticipation of continuing tight liquidity and market volatility, as well as the grim outlook for economic growth based
on estimates by economists, future corporate earnings are expected to be under pressure. The board of directors (the
“Board”) has therefore opted for a prudent cash management policy and recommends a final dividend of HKO.1 cents
per share. Taking into account the interim dividend of HKO.3 cents per share, total dividend per share for the year would
be HKO0.4 cents; and total dividend for the year would amount to HK$24 million. This translates into a dividend yield of 4
percent, which is competitive with market.

BUILDING LONG-TERM VALUE BY COMMITTING TO ONGOING DEVELOPMENT
AND STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS

Throughout the years, the Group has adopted a long-term commitment to ongoing investment and development as
the basis for the Group’s innovation, which is the key to sustained growth, especially in the information technology
industry. Our innovation strategy requires a unique combination of internal development, partnerships, and acquisitions,
which calls for good judgment and a certain level of risk taking. Such business risks are an essential part of the growth
strategy.

Year-on-year, the Group has invested significant amounts on activities and projects that directly add value to our
businesses. These strategic investments are the building blocks for our future business units and the sources of future
cash flows and value for our shareholders. We have invested in positioning and defending our intellectual property. We
build high-growth businesses that are going to be important asset plays, including our comprehensive range of security
products, e-commerce solutions, investment in In-Car Telematics solutions, anti-radiation products, ID card project with
related IT security opportunities, and more recently, investment in culture and related services.

In times of market uncertainties and global economic downturn as we are currently experiencing, the management will
continue to exercise prudence, whereby some of the new investments may be put on hold pending the return of a more
stable operating environment and improvement in market sentiment.

OUTLOOK

As global markets are likely to remain uncertain over the continuing debt crisis in Europe, concern over the US economy
and scepticism whether China can maintain its high growth rate, the Group will remain vigilant in the implementation of
its business plans.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

While the Group’s business fundamentals remain positive, the continuing global uncertain market conditions may further
dampen consumer and business confidence and so affect customer purchases and the Group’s performance. The
Group also has to bear rising operating costs brought about by inflation, higher wages and social security contributions
due to national policies.

Throughout the years, the Group has followed closely the policies of China’s economic development, and has
managed to take advantage of opportunities offered by such policies, namely backing the information technology
and telecommunications industry. Going forward, the Group will continue its prudent approach in investing in
complementary businesses that have good growth prospects. In addition to continuing investments in technologies and
innovative solutions which are key to sustainable growth, the Group plans to expand its business in the culture sector,
which is in line with China’s national policy to promote its culture industry alongside its rise as an economic power.

Cultural Industries are often referred to as part of the Information Economy, and in some countries, Cultural Industries
are also called Creative Industries. In the broad sense, such activities as scientific and technological innovation,
software and database development, telecommunications services, and the production of hardware and electronic
equipment are within the bounds of Cultural Industries. The Group’s participation and sponsorship in the past two
decades of various cultural events, including the popular exhibitions under the Peace and Harmony series hosted
by Chinese World Cultural Heritage Foundation with thousands of rare antiques and relics; major programs such as
“Le French May”, “Paris 1730-1930: A Taste for China”, “Treasures of the World’s Cultures from the British Museum”,
“Otium Ludens Leisure and Play: Ancient Relics of the Roman Empire”, has enabled it to accumulate related knowledge
and business connections, both overseas and on the Mainland, in the field of culture and related activities. Ongoing
engagement in international and regional cultural exchange activities also helps to enhance the Group’s experience in
the culture business.

Combining technology, creativity and art, and in collaboration with niche partners, the Group has developed a portfolio
of comprehensive customised solutions for integrated security and monitoring systems safeguarding precious exhibits
on the one hand, and on the other, we have enhanced our e-commerce capabilities embracing data-mining and
knowledge management in the sales, marketing and promotion of art, antiques, cultural products and collectibles for
the consumer market. With the further opening up of China’s culture market, as well as the rising interest in Chinese
culture and heritage among consumers around the world, the Group is well-positioned to capitalise on its extensive
customer bases and global distribution networks to develop income streams for a wide range of culture-related topics
within the ambit of the Creative and Information Industry.

OUR GREATEST ASSET AND APPRECIATION

Champion Technology today has been made possible with the support and contribution of many parties involved.
First we thank our employees across the globe who are the spirit of Champion Technology — their creativity, flexibility,
responsiveness and belief in, and commitment to, Champion Technology’s success have gotten Champion Technology
to where it is today, and will ensure our continuity in the next 20 years and beyond. All of us at Champion Technology
are striving hard to be the champions of the next generation.

We are also thankful to our shareholders, business partners, customers, bankers, professional consultants and the

government, whose continued support will be needed to help us forge ahead, and keep our leadership position in this
exciting era.

Paul KAN Man Lok
Chairman

28 September 2012

6 CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012



CONVERSATION WITH CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER LEO KAN

As a leading provider of integrated technology
solutions in niche markets, what is the key to
sustainable development?

We see sustainability comprising three core components,
namely, economic, social (including health and cultural),
and environmental. All our pursuits, whether business or
social responsibility, build on the sustainability goal.

In terms of business, our solutions, ranging from
communications software, wireless, telematics,
e-commerce, security, to online entertainment and
e-gaming, are dedicated to bettering the lives of people,
enriching lifestyles, promoting health consciousness,
preventing accidents, saving lives, as well as promoting
probity and responsibility in the conduct of the online
industry. Such solutions include software-enhanced
wireless messaging, radio products and systems,
spark proof intrinsically safe communications systems,
responsible gaming solutions, as well as networking
and internet access products for customers, network
operators, and commercial, government and industrial
clients.

Underlying the Group’s business pursuits is a strong
sense to work for good causes, for more loving care, for
peace and harmony, and ultimately for a better tomorrow.
Our solutions revolve around the themes of safety,
security, systems integrity and reliability, probity,
philanthropy, and community.

In recent years, Champion Technology has been
actively engaging in cultural projects in various roles
from participant to sponsor to organiser. How is
Culture related to Champion Technology’s corporate
and business philosophy?

In the span of 20 years since our IPO, we have expanded
our presence into 50 markets spanning Europe, North and
South Americas, Australasia and Asia. To be truly global
today, a company has to do a lot more than set up sales
offices or research facilities in multiple markets. Doing
business is about relationships, not just transactions. It is
the Group’s strong belief that we have to engage at the
level of culture, as well as process. We have to build trust,
to be integrated with other civilisations and communities,
and to understand their point of view on business and
innovation.

As we expand our geographical footprint, we have
become increasingly aware of the need to appreciate the
diversity of different cultures, hence our early involvement
and investment in various cultural events. Such initiative
takes time, and requires commitment for the long
term. We are prepared to invest and continue with this
meaningful corporate endeavour in the years to come.

What are Cultural Industries as far as Champion
Technology is concerned?

In a literal sense, Cultural Industries are the manufacturers
of the information economy. Cultural Industries produce
and distribute knowledge-based goods and services,
which include a wide array of activities ranging from
crafts, through arts, music and film to publishing, internet
broadcasting, and the multimedia industry. What Cultural
Industries have in common is that they create content,
and use creativity, skills, and talent in the exploitation of
intellectual property to produce products and services
with social and cultural meaning, while generating
economic benefits.

Cultural Industries are often referred to as part of the
Information Economy, and in some countries, Cultural
Industries are also called Creative Industries. In the broad
sense, such activities as scientific and technological
innovation, software and database development,
telecommunications services, and the production of
hardware and electronic equipment fall within the ambit of
Cultural Industries.

From the humble beginnings of an amateurish
pursuit of a community initiative, Champion
Technology is today expanding its business to
develop income streams from its cultural projects.
Can you share with us how this is achievable?

For two decades, we have participated and jointly
sponsored various cultural events, including the popular
flagship exhibitions under the Peace and Harmony
series hosted by Chinese World Cultural Heritage
Foundation with thousands of rare antiques and relics.
Ongoing engagement in international and regional cultural
exchange activities also helps to enhance the Group’s
experience in the culture business. (Please refer to section
headed Two Decades of Supporting and Sponsoring
Arts and Cultural Events.)

With the further opening up of China’s culture market, as
well as the rising interest in Chinese culture and heritage
among consumers around the world, the Group is well-
positioned to capitalise on its extensive customer bases
and global distribution networks, as well its expertise in
IT and e-commerce to develop income streams for a
wide range of culture-related topics. In collaboration with
niche partners, the Group has already developed some
customised security solutions for safeguarding exhibits
on one hand, and on the other, the Group has enhanced
its e-commerce capabilities in the sales, marketing
and promotion of art, antiques, cultural products, and
collectibles for the consumer market.
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CONVERSATION WITH CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER LEO KAN

Going forward, what is the Action Plan for your
cultural business?

We have mapped out an Action Plan with the following
seven objectives:

° to make cultural policy a key component of our
corporate development strategy;

° to promote creativity and participation in cultural life;

o to reinforce measures to administer literary and
artistic undertakings, and promote and manage
cultural activities;

° to foster cultural and linguistic diversity in the
information society;

° to make more human and financial resources
available for cultural development;

° to engage in international cultural exchange
activities at home and abroad; and

° to co-operate with international partners in the
cultural industries to develop culture-related
technologies.

Our Action Plan follows closely the policies of China’s
economic development, especially under the 12th Five-
Year Plan which outlines culture industry as a new engine
in driving the economy, which demonstrates China’s
reiteration of cultural development after over three
decades of fast economic expansion.

In addition to economic and social (cultural)
aspects, Champion Technology is also committed to
environmental sustainability. Could you share with
us your initiatives and processes?

We are committed to developing our “green” vision and
strategy, working closely with our suppliers to implement
“green” initiatives. We measure our achievements and
successes through ensuring that:

° We comply with relevant legislative and regulatory
requirements, identifying and applying the best
available techniques wherever possible to minimise
our impact on the environment.

° We monitor the use of our resources to meet these
commitments in a manner that reinforces our
activities through considerate product design, reuse
and recycling and energy monitoring.

° We review our practices and work with partners to
improve our performance.

Practically the methods employed to ensure that we
comply and strive to improve are through review and
understanding of customers, regulatory and statutory
requirements and adherence to procedures. All members
of staff take responsibility for their awareness and
compliance with the policies and procedures. At the
senior level, management holds the shared responsibility
for ensuring not only the adherence to, but also the
creation of procedures and provision of guidance to meet
objectives efficiently and effectively. Last but not least, the
directors’ role is to set and review performance criteria,
promote environmental objectives and scrutinise reports
and evidence provided to them by the management team
on the effectiveness of the measures taken.

Locally in Hong Kong, the Group is a signatory to the SAR
Government’s “Carbon Audit — Green Partners” Scheme
which aims at engaging corporations and NGOs to reduce
greenhouse gas emission in Hong Kong.
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TWO DECADES OF SUPPORTING AND
SPONSORING ARTS AND CULTURAL EVENTS

Cultural Industries are the manufacturers of the information economy. Cultural Industries produce and distribute
knowledge-based goods and services, which include a wide array of activities ranging from crafts, through arts, music
and film to publishing, internet broadcasting, and the multimedia industry. As part of the Information Economy, Cultural
Industries are also widely referred as Creative Industries.

As we expand our geographical footprint, we have become increasingly aware of the need to appreciate the diversity
of different cultures, hence our early involvement and investment in various cultural events, many of which are held
annually. For some events, Dr. Paul Kan is involved in his personal capacity: for example, he is an Executive Committee
Member of Hong Kong Youth Arts Foundation (1998-present); a member of Arts and Treasures Evaluation Committee of
the Ministry of Culture, China (2007-present); and a patron of International Foundation for Art Research (2009-present).
In its corporate capacity, Champion Technology is a Sponsor of “Le French May” (2005-present); a Sponsor of Hong
Kong Jewish Film Festival (2005-present); and a participant in Standard Chartered Arts in the Park Mardi Gras (2008-
present). During 2004-2009, the Group was a Sponsor of the Academy of Chinese Studies Limited.

PEACE AND HARMONY OTHER NOTABLE

SPONSORSHIPS

EXHIBITION SERIES INCLUDE:

Exhibition “Treasures of
(in association with Chinese World Cultural Heritage Foundation and World Cultural World Cultures from the

Relics Protection Foundation) British Museum” and
“Dunhuang: Past, Present,
Future — 100th Anniversary
The exhibition series is the brainchild of  from the local community, and gaining  of Sir Aurel Stein’s
the Group’s Chairman Dr. Paul Kan, who international recognition over the years, as Expedition” in Budapest in
feels a strong affection for Hong Kong  described below: 2007; exhibition *Visions
which has given him all the airihe Calesie] Bl
opportunities from start- Cilnets e [ besiom
up to managing a global Cartography (BEEniEe
) by Champion Technology
enterprise today."'rhe in association with the
purpose of the exhibitions Consulate General of Italy in
is to promote a sense of Hong Kong and University
peace and harmony in Museum and Art Gallery of
the world where we are The University); exhibition
living, a central concept in “Otium Ludens Leisure and
Chinese culture. Through Play: Ancient relics of the
the exhibitions, Champion SRR EMRIE s ©dltien
Technology hopes to Paris 1730-1930: A
spread the message of Uz o) Chllers el
A > exhibition “Fascinated by
.COntaneld Strengthenlng. Of the Orient: Life and Works
mternatlonall co-operation of Marc Aurel Stein” in
beyond all differences and
borders for the common

sponsored the cultural talk

2008. In 2009, the Group
good and progress.

Four Peace and Harmony
exhibitions were held at
the Exchange Square and
the Hong Kong City Hall,
winning strong support

“Buddhist Art of Dunhuang
in the Light of the Pelliot
Collection”, a programme of
the “Silk Road Arts Festival”
organised by Leisure

and Cultural Services
Department, featuring
speaker Mr. Jacques Gies,
President of the Asian Arts,
Museum Guimet, Paris.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year under review (the “Year”), the Group’s
turnover increased 9 percent to HK$3,411 million from
HK$3,125 million in the previous year (the “Previous Year”).
Profit for the Year increased by 3 percent to HK$98 million
as compared with HK$95 million for the Previous Year.
Profit attributable to owners of the Company increased
by 10 percent to HK$62 million from HK$57 million for
the Previous Year. Earnings per share for the Year was
HK1.04 cents (2011: HK1.15 cents). The Group’s gross
margin improved slightly to 12.9 percent (2011: 12.3
percent). EBITDA was relatively stable at HK$1,364 million
from HK$1,382 million for the Previous Year. In view of
the less than optimistic outlook for the global economy,
with the exception of China and a few emerging markets,
the Group continued to adopt a prudent approach for its
investment projects pending signs of recovery. During
the Year, the Group had recognised impairment losses
of HK$104 million (2011: HK$66 million) for deposits and
prepaid development costs for systems and networks.
Excluding the impairment losses, adjusted EBITDA for the
Year was HK$1,468 million, compared with HK$1,448
million for the Previous Year.

The Group continued to review and exercise cost control.
Distribution costs decreased by 14 percent to HK$36.7
million (2011: HK$42.6 million), general and administrative
expenses increased 10 percent to HK$192 million (2011:
HK$175 million) and research and development costs
expensed increased by 19 percent to HK$17.4 million
(2011: HK$14.6 million). Total staff costs included in
direct operating expenses and general and administrative
expenses decreased by 4 percent to HK$126 million
(2011: HK$131 million). Depreciation and amortisation
expenses dropped modestly to HK$1,263 million (2011:
HK$1,283 million) as a result of the delay in roll-out of new
systems and networks.

Finance costs remained low at HK$3.4 million (2011:
HK$3.5 million), as a result of the prevailing low interest
rate and low gearing of the Group.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

For the Year, China’s economy showed signs of slowing
down in some sectors. Exports were affected by the
uncertain state of many western economies, while weaker
than expected imports indicated a decline in homegrown
consumption. Amid such concerns over slowing growth,
investment sentiment had turned cautious and the

pace of market activities remained subdued. The Group
continued to focus on innovative communications and
security solutions and services customised to achieve
high reliability and high integrity. Enhancement of product
mix and introduction of new solutions and services have
contributed to a moderate increase in sales. However, the
interruption in the supply of key components and products
sourced from Japan since the tsunami in March last year
had affected the Group’s new product development,
hence, restraining revenue growth.

The Group’s strategic investment in In-Car telematics
solutions, anti-radiation products to counteract radio
transmission from mobile phones, as well as smart
logistics solutions, continued, but at a slower pace than
originally planned in line with world economy. Meanwhile,
in an effort to boost its offerings of security solutions, the
Group has been working with international partners to
offer comprehensive customised solutions for integrated
security systems. These investments were subject to
periodic review to determine if progress was in line with
the original plans and if the anticipated benefits could be
achieved. Where required, impairment provisions at an
appropriate level would be made.

For the Year, China sales increased by 10 percent to
HK$2,701 million as compared with HK$2,454 million for
the Previous Year.

In Europe, the unstable economic climate continued
to affect the Group’s trading position. The austerity
measures adopted by governments across Europe slowed
spending and delayed project rollout. In particular, the
Group’s business in the United Kingdom (“UK”) declined
amidst a contraction of the economy triggered by its
government’s deepest spending cuts in a generation. The
Group maintained its focus on emergency services, NHS
(National Health Services) projects and fire control sectors,
where some projects were either delayed, suffered from
reduced budgets, or were cancelled. To alleviate the
shortfall in the UK operation, the Group put more effort
on other European markets, building on its innovative
range of personal security products. Germany remained
a significant market for the Group, but its outlook was
clouded by the weak fundamentals of its neighbours,
resulting in an uncertain economy for Europe as a whole.
Turnover of the European operations was HK$512 million,
an increase of 8 percent as compared with HK$474
million for the Previous Year.
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Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone”)
Kantone’s turnover was HK$1,429 million and profit for
the Year was HK$80 million, representing corresponding
increase of 7 percent and decrease of 5 percent as
compared with HK$1,341 million and HK$84 million
respectively for the Previous Year. Sales in China were
in line with the country’s economic development. With
the Central Government’s support of the science and
technology sector in general, sales and marketing
activities for Kantone’s customised solutions and
products continued, but the momentum has slackened
due to delays in rolling out new projects. In Europe, fiscal
tightening across the board posed great challenges
to Kantone’s business operation. Elsewhere however,
Kantone recorded satisfactory growth from Australasia
and Middle East markets in sales of traditional systems
products and personal security solutions.

For e-gaming and online entertainment, Kantone
continued to invest in the enhancement of integrated
gaming technology solutions, online payment channels
and sales networks. The new regulations covering the
administration of lottery in China which came into effect
early this year have laid the foundation for the integrated
development of paper and paperless lottery distribution
and rationalisation of the industry. This hopefully may be
a signal of the gradual opening up of the China lottery
market in an orderly manner, and as such, may bode
well for innovative service providers such as Kantone to
expand its activities into various parts of the lottery value
chain. Nonetheless, investments in the e-lottery project
were subject to periodic review to determine if progress
was in line with original plans, and if the anticipated
benefits could be achieved.

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK”)

Digital HK recorded a loss of HK$2,752,000 on turnover
of HK$3,003,000 for the Year, compared with a loss
of HK$2,565,000 on turnover of HK$3,124,000 in the
Previous Year. It continues to seek investments to
broaden its income streams. In particular, it plans to
leverage its expertise and e-commerce capabilities to
engage in a number of sectors, including those of health
and culture via the promotion and trading of products and
provision of related services, which are in line with China’s
national policy to promote its culture and health industries.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

Financial Position and Gearing

The Group’s financial position remained positive with a
low gearing.

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had HK$280 million made
up of deposits, bank balances and cash. Current assets
were approximately HK$2,114 million (2011: HK$1,571
million) and current liabilities amounted to approximately
HK$355 million (2011: HK$452 million). With net current
assets of HK$1,758 million (2011: HK$1,119 million), the
Group maintained a high level of financial liquidity. The
gearing ratio of the Group, which calculation was based
on the Group’s total borrowings of HK$256 million (2011:
HK$344 million) and equity attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$7,451 million (2011: HK$7,382 million),
was 0.034 (2011: 0.047).

As at 30 June 2012, the borrowings mainly comprised
bank loans of HK$216 million (2011: HK$225 million) and
overdrafts of HK$40 million (2011: HK$54 million). All the
bank loans were either repayable on demand or within
one year and overdrafts were repayable on demand. The
principal amount of the redeemable convertible bonds of
HK$64 million outstanding as at 30 June 2011 was fully
repaid upon maturity on 19 September 2011.

As at 30 June 2012, bank loans of HK$26 million (2011:
HK$31 million) were secured by the Group’s land and
buildings with a carrying value of HK$8.1 million (2011:
HK$8.5 million).

Treasury Policy

The Group is committed to financial prudence and
maintains a positive financial position with low gearing. The
Group finances its operation and business development
by a combination of internally generated resources, capital
markets instruments and banking facilities.

Other than the convertible bond, all the borrowings were
used by subsidiaries of the Company bearing interest
at floating rates. As all the Group’s borrowings were
denominated in their local currencies, the currency risk
exposure associated with them was insignificant.

The Group does not engage in any speculative derivatives
or structured product transactions, interest rate or foreign
exchange speculative activities. It is the Group’s policy to
manage foreign exchange risk through matching foreign
exchange income with expense, and where exposure
to foreign exchange is anticipated, appropriate hedging
instruments will be used.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2012, the Group’s capital commitments
authorised but not contracted for were approximately
HK$191 million (2011: HK$203 million). As at 30 June
2011, the Group’s capital commitments contracted
but not provided for were approximately HK$82 million.
These commitments were set aside for the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment, and development of
systems and networks.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2012, the Group employed about 1,200
staff around the globe. Staff costs for the Year were
HK$126 million (2011: HK$131 million). Remuneration
is determined with reference to market terms and
the performance, qualifications and experience of the
individual employee. Remuneration includes monthly
salaries, performance-linked bonuses, retirement benefits
schemes and other benefits such as medical scheme.

The Company has established a Human Resources
and Remuneration Committee. In determining the
remuneration of the directors, the committee will consider
factors such as the Company’s operating results,
individual performance, salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

FINAL DIVIDEND AND SCRIP DIVIDEND
SCHEME

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company on 30 November
2012, the Board has proposed a final dividend of HKO.1
cents per share for the year ended 30 June 2012 (2011:
HKO.1 cents per share) to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 7
December 2012. Taking into account the interim dividend
of HKO.3 cents (2011: HKO.3 cents) per share paid on 25
May 2012, total dividend per share for the year would be
HKO0.4 cents (2011: HKO.4 cents); and total dividend for
the year would be HK$24 million, compared with HK$43
million of last year.

The final dividend will be satisfied by allotment of new
shares of the Company, credited as fully paid, by way of
scrip dividend, with an alternative to the shareholders to
elect to receive such dividend (or part thereof) in cash in
lieu of such allotment (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”).

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is subject to the granting by
the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited of a listing of and permission to deal in the
shares to be issued pursuant thereto. A circular setting
out the details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme together with
the form of election will be sent to the shareholders of the
Company as soon as practicable.

It is expected that certificates for shares to be issued
under the Scrip Dividend Scheme and dividend warrants
will be despatched to those entitled thereto on or before 6
February 2013.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 6 December 2012 to 7 December 2012, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be effected. In order to qualify for the
above final dividend and the Scrip Dividend Scheme, all
transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Branch
Share Registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries
Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 5
December 2012.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Paul KAN Man Lok, 65, is the founder and Chairman.
He is also the Chairman and an executive director
of both Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone”) and
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK”), subsidiaries
of the Company whose shares are listed on the Main
Board and the GEM Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”) respectively. Dr. Kan
holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and an Honorary
Doctor of Humane Letters Degree from the University of
Northern Virginia, United States. He has over 40 years
of experience in the computing and telecommunications
industries. Prior to setting up the Group in 1987, he was
the general manager in charge of Asiadata Limited, a
computing services subsidiary of Cable & Wireless PLC.

Dr. Kan has received a number of prestigious awards from
several governments and various local and international
professional bodies in recognition of his contribution to the
community and the industry. Government awards include
Commander of the most Excellent Order of the British
Empire (CBE) by Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth Il (2006);
Commendatore dell’Ordine della Stella della Solidarieta
[taliana by the Italian Prime Minister Hon. Romano Prodi
(2006); the Hong Kong SAR Government’s appointment
as a Justice of the Peace (2006); Chevalier de I'Ordre
de la Légion d’Honneur by the Government of France
(2007); and Silver Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong SAR
Government (2009).

Professional awards include Young Industrialist Award
(1992); Hong Kong Business Award-Enterprise Trophy
(1993); Governor’s Award for Hong Kong Industries (1989);
Honorary Fellow of the Academy of Chinese Studies
(2005); and Honorary Professor of Szent Istvan University
in Budapest, Hungary (2011).

In civic duties, Dr. Kan is currently the Honorary Chairman
and former Chairman (2001-2011) of the Hong Kong
Information Technology Industry Council, and Chairman
of Hong Kong IT Alliance (1999—-present). He is a member
of the Council of The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
Anhui Province in the PRC, and the Election Committee
for the Hong Kong representatives of National People’s
Congress of China for three terms from 2002 to 2017.
He was a member of HKSAR Chief Executive Election
Committee for the IT sector for three consecutive terms
from 1996 to 2012. He also served twice on the Exchange

Corporate Governance Working Group during 1994-1995
and 1999-2000, and was a member of the Listing
Committee of the Exchange for the period 1999-2003. He
was the Chairman of the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council Information and Communications Technology
Services Advisory Committee from 2006 to 2010 and ICT
Working Group, Hong Kong — United Kingdom Business
Partnership from 2004 to 2007. He had also served as a
member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council
Electronics/Electrical Appliances Industry Advisory
Committee for 10 years from 1997 to 2006.

Dr. Kan had been an independent non-executive director
of CLP Holdings Limited for 9 years from 2001 until he
retired in 2010 to take up the additional responsibility as
Honorary Consul of Hungary in Hong Kong and Macao
from 2011.

Leo KAN Kin Leung, 56, is the Company’s executive
director and Chief Executive Officer, as well as a non-
executive director of Kantone and Digital HK. He is brother
of Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok, Chairman of the Company.
He is responsible for formulating the Group’s overall
policy and development strategy as well as the Group’s
global operations and management. Prior to joining the
Group in 1988, Mr. Kan held management positions
in several international companies in Hong Kong. He
holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from
Dalhousie University in Canada and a Master’s degree
in Economics from the University of Alberta in Canada.
In 2006, Mr. Kan completed the Oxford Advanced
Management Programme at the Said Business School of
the University of Oxford.

Mr. Kan is the Chairman of the Hong Kong Information
Technology Industry Council, the Vice Chairman of
Hong Kong IT Alliance as well as the Chairman of its IT
Committee. He serves on Internet Professional Association
as Honorary Secretary and a Council Member. Mr.
Kan is a member of the CreateSmart Initiative Vetting
Committee of the Hong Kong SAR Government, the
School of Continuing Education Advisory Committee of
the Hong Kong Baptist University, the Design Council of
Hong Kong and the Consultative and Advisory Panel of
the Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited.
He is also an Executive Committee Member of the Hong
Kong Information Technology Joint Council and a General
Committee Member of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

LAI Yat Kwong, 63, is the Company’s executive director
and Chief Financial Officer, with responsibility for its
financial and accounting policy and control. He is also
the Chief Executive Officer (Acting), Chief Financial Officer
and an executive director of Kantone, as well as a non-
executive director of Digital HK. He joined the Group
in March 1994 as Vice President of Internal Audit and
Control. In July 1997, he took on responsibility as the Chief
Financial Officer of Kantone. He holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Business Administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and has over 40 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and company secretarial matters.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (Practising). Since October
2011, he has been an independent non-executive director
of Trony Solar Holdings Company Limited, shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Exchange.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Shirley HA Suk Ling, 56, has been a non-executive
director of the Company since November 2004. She is the
Chief Executive Officer and an executive director of Digital
HK, as well as a non-executive director of Kantone. She
joined the Group in 1992 as its Executive Vice President
with responsibility for its corporate development. She has
over 25 years of business experience including 10 years in
investment banking.

Ms. Ha holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Arts from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong. She currently is a member of the Personal
Data (Privacy) Advisory Committee of the Office of the
Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data, Hong Kong,
Digital 21 Strategy Advisory Committee and the Board
of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance); and serves as
Mentor under the Mentorship Programme of the Hong
Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation. She
is a General Committee Member of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries and Vice Chairman of the Hong
Kong Information Technology Industry Council, Council
Member of Internet Professional Association and Co-
Chairman of Special Interest Group in Venture Capital and
New Business Development, Senior Member of the Hong
Kong Information Technology Joint Council and member
of the Hong Kong Corporate Counsel Association. She is
also the Honorary Secretary of Hungarian — Hong Kong
Innovative Business Council.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Terry John MILLER, 73, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since May 1992.
Previously, he held the position of Deputy Chief Executive
at Hong Kong Telecommunications Limited, and was the
Regional Director, Asia/Pacific, of Cable & Wireless PLC.
He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and is the former president of the
Hong Kong Institute of the International Association of
Financial Executives.

Francis Gilbert KNIGHT, 82, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since February
2000. He is the Chairman of the audit committee of the
Company. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Digital HK. Mr. Knight is the Chairman and
Managing Director of Asian Security and Investigation
Services Limited. He has over 20 years’ experience in
the field of copyright protection, security and commercial
investigations, and acts as security adviser to a number
of major organisations. Mr. Knight is a member of the
International Association of Police Chiefs and the Hong
Kong Intellectual Property Society; and a fellow of the
British Institute of Directors and the British Institute
of Management. He is also a former President of the
American Society for Industrial Security (Hong Kong
Branch).

Frank BLEACKLEY, 75, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since November
2001. He is also an independent non-executive director
of Kantone. He was formerly Managing Director of Chubb
China Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of the former Chubb
Security Group, a manufacturer and distributor of security
and safety products and systems headquartered in the
United Kingdom. He has considerable experience in the
management and business development of joint venture
companies in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
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LEE Chi Wah, 55, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since July 2009. He
is currently the Chief Technology Officer of a consultancy
firm and has over 30 years’ professional experience with
several international IT&T organisations for major roles
in the areas of technical project development, customer
services and sales management, including serving the
Group from 1988 to 1994 with his last position as Vice
President, Technology and Chief Technical Officer. He
holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration
from the University of Western Sydney in Australia and
a Bachelor of Science honours degree in Electronic
Engineering from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
From November 1995 to March 2012, he was a Chartered
Professional Engineer — IT & E (MIEAust CPENng) and
Chartered National Professional Engineers Register (NPER)
of The Institution of Engineers, Australia.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Jennifer CHEUNG Mei Ha, 56, has been the Company
Secretary since 1992. She is a solicitor practising in Hong
Kong. She is also the Company Secretary of Kantone and
Digital HK.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Francis KAN, 64, is Executive Vice President, Systems
Development, and has held positions of responsibility in
information technology, both in Hong Kong and abroad,
for over 20 years. Since 1994, he has been responsible
for the operations and expansion of the Group’s systems,
overseeing all internet-related activities and alliances with
major partners. He is brother of Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok.
Mr. Kan has a Master’s degree from the University of
Alberta in Canada.

Iris KOO Kin Hing, 48, is Senior Vice President, Finance,
overseeing all financial operations of the Group. She is
based in Macau. Before joining the Group in 1989, she
worked at an international accounting firm where she
had gained valuable experience. She holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. She is a Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

FUNG Kin Leung, 51, is Senior Vice President of
Microelectronics. He is responsible for managing the
Group’s research and development capacity to facilitate
its global operations. He is also a director of several of
the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Fung has over 25 years’
experience in software and product development. He
joined the Group in 1987 as Technical Manager, and was
promoted through the ranks to his current position. In
recent years, he has been focusing on the development of
information delivery systems to enhance wireless internet
applications. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Science and
Electronics from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and a Master’s degree in Electronics Engineering from the
University of Hong Kong. He is a Chartered Engineer as
well as a member of the Institution of Electrical Engineers
and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.

Luiz Octavio VILLA-LOBOS, 51, is Vice President
of Interactive Knowledge Delivery for the Group’s
International Operations, overseeing international
clients’ requirements for enterprise solutions. He is also
Managing Director of Kantone’s Brazilian operations
with responsibility for running and developing business
in South America. He joined the Group in 1997 and set
up from its inception the business in Brazil. He holds a
Master’s degree in Aerospace Engineering from Sup’Aero
in France and an MBA from the London Business School.

WANG Yu Peng, 47, was appointed as Chief Operating
Officer, e-Lottery Business at Kantone in September
2005. He is the founder of a member company of the
Group which is a pioneer systems developer and service
provider in paperless betting systems in China, and owns
two invention patents in telephone betting systems. He is
a graduate of Tsing Hua University in Computer Science.

Roy GOSS, 69, is Director of International Business, with
responsibility for the Group’s contract negotiation, licensee
management, agency distribution and customer liaison.
He is based in Macau and is also a director of several of
the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Goss is a seasoned expert
in finance and telecommunications, having served in the
Middle East and Macau with Cable & Wireless PLC for
more than 17 years. He is a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Prior to
joining the Group, he was the Finance Director of Macau
Telecommunications Company, a subsidiary of Cable &
Wireless PLC.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Stephen GENTRY, 56, is Head of International
Businesses at Kantone and Chief Executive of Multitone
Electronics Plc (“Multitone”), a member company of
the Group, with responsibilities for formulating the
overall policy and development strategy for the Group’s
international operations. He is also a director of several
of the Group’s subsidiaries. He joined the Group in 1988
as financial accountant of the UK operations, and has
considerable experience working for the Group’s various
European and American operations. He was promoted to
the position of Chief Executive of Multitone in 2003 and is
a member of the Institute of Directors.

Frank ROTTHOFF, 49, is Managing Director of German
operations at Kantone. He joined the Group in 2008
and has extensive experience in sales and marketing
management within the electronics industry. His
earlier career covered international sales of industrial
machinery and process technology before entering the
semiconductor sector in 1989. He was responsible for
the sales organisation of a leading European distributor of
electronic components before joining the Group.

Cindy MAK Man Yee, 44, is Vice President,
Administration and Logistics. She is the Group’s primary
liaison point with external organisations and coordinates
a wide range of the Group’s operations in logistics,
corporate resource development and purchasing.
She joined the Group as a management trainee after
graduating from the University of Hong Kong in 1990
with a Bachelor’s degree in Social Sciences, and was
promoted through the ranks to her present position.
Ms. Mak also holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration, and has completed a business programme
of the eMBA studies at the Hass School of Business,
University of California Berkeley. She serves on the Hong
Kong IT Alliance as its executive committee member.

Joanne CHIU Yim Fan, 41, is Vice President,
Compliance, with responsibility for promoting good
corporate governance practices for the Company in
accordance with the relevant listing requirements in Hong
Kong. She is also Vice President, Human Resources,
responsible for formulating and implementing the Group’s
human resources policies. Ms. Chiu graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree
in Arts. She also holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration and is a Professional Member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Human Resource Management. She
joined the Group in 1994,

Teresa TONG Seek Fan, 46, is Vice President,
Operations. She runs the Group’s call centre and is
also responsible for customer care, product design and
the retail aspects of the Group’s business. She holds
a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration. She
joined the Group in 1990 and is a member of the Hong
Kong Information Technology Joint Council, the Internet
Professional Association as well as the China Investment,
Development and Co-operation Sub-committee of the
Hong Kong Information Technology Industry Council.

Julia LEUNG Yiu Lin, 47, is Vice President, Business
Development, with responsibility for sales and marketing,
identifying distributors and sales agents, as well as liaising
with suppliers for the Group’s products and services.
Ms. Leung has served the Group in a number of key
areas since the start of operations in the 1980’s, having
previously worked with Cable & Wireless Group in Hong
Kong.

Gary CHOY Kin Chung, 42, is Vice President, China
Investment. He oversees business investment in China
and plays a pivotal role in the execution of the Group’s
growth strategy in China. He is also a member of the
Group’s Investment Committee and a director of several
of the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Choy holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Electrical Engineering from Georgia Institute of
Technology, Atlanta, Georgia, USA and a Master’s degree
in Business Administration (Executive MBA Programme)
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in 1992 and worked with a number of divisions
within the Group.

Robert SIA Chun Chung, 40, is Vice President,
e-Commerce Projects at Digital HK responsible for
overseeing technical management and systems
support. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Electrical and
Electronic Engineering from the University of Hong Kong
and a Master’s degree in Electronic Engineering from
the Polytechnic University of Hong Kong. He has also
completed a business programme of the eMBA studies
at the Hass School of Business, University of California
Berkeley. Mr. Sia has been with the Group since 1995
and has worked with a number of divisions within the
Group. He also serves on the Hong Kong Radio Paging
Association and the Hong Kong IT Alliance as an
executive committee member.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHE

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2012,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in sales of goods and licensing (including
sales of systems products, software licensing and customisation,
provision of services and leasing of systems products,
provision of e-lottery services and sales of cultural goods) and
holding strategic investments in advanced technology product
development companies and e-commerce projects.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2012 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 30 and in the accompanying notes to the consolidated
financial statements. An interim dividend in scrip form equivalent
to HKO.3 cents per share, with a cash option, was distributed
to the shareholders during the year. A final dividend in scrip
form equivalent to HKO.1 cents per share, with a cash option, is
proposed by the directors.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution represents
the aggregate of dividend reserve, general reserve, special
reserve, capital redemption reserve and the retained profits of
HK$1,864,938,000 (2011: HK$1,830,678,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

ASSOCIATE
Particulars of the Group’s associate as at 30 June 2012 are set
out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

Particulars of the Group’s jointly controlled entity as at 30
June 2012 are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive directors:
Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong

Non-executive director:
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Terry John Miller

Mr. Francis Gilbert Knight

Mr. Frank Bleackley

Mr. Lee Chi Wah

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok and Mr. Lai Yat Kwong and Ms. Shirley Ha
Suk Ling will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No director has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Each of the non-executive directors has a service contract with
the Company for a term of up to the date on which he/she shall
retire by rotation in an annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. The executive
directors do not have any service contract with the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms it has received from each of its
independent non-executive directors an annual confirmation
of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), and considers that the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

SHARE OPTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS
TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Each of the Company and two of its subsidiaries, Kantone
Holdings Limited (“Kantone”) and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM
(“Digital HK”), has a share option scheme under which eligible
persons, including directors of the Company, Kantone, Digital HK
or any of their respective subsidiaries, may be granted options
to subscribe for shares of the Company, Kantone and Digital HK
respectively.

Details of the share option schemes of the Company, Kantone
and Digital HK are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Other than the share option schemes described in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 June 2012, the interests of the directors of the
Company in the shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers were as follows:

EECESERRAR

RZZB—ZFRXA=TH  RESFRAEGE(TE
FRHIEIED ) FIB2GREARRRATEEZERL
MATacs: - IR EM BT AESETESF I HH
BEFADAARRFNEBHEZXZAER AT (R
ST DBTEL 2B - ARREREARARES
AREOEE (& RES REE GIIEXVER) Z K
R Z RN

Approximate

percentage of

Number the issued

Name of director Capacity of shares share capital

HEBITRA

BEEpE 287) ROEE 2=

Securities of the Company Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok Corporate interest Note 1 27.47%
PAYNGIE:E X EEEL NEER Bt

Securities of Kantone Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok Corporate interest Note 2 54.98%
BRES [E)€ ks NEER fzE2

Securities of Digital HK Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok Corporate interest Note 3 74.48%
HHEEES X EEEL NEER BiEE3

Notes: BT
1. 1,682,281,441 shares of the Company were held by Lawnside 1. 1,682,281,441 i A~ 2 A% 17 B3 Lawnside International

International Limited (“Lawnside”). Lawnside is beneficially wholly
owned by Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok. As at 30 June 2012, Lawnside
had interests in approximately 27.47% of the entire issued share
capital of the Company. Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok was deemed to
have corporate interest in the shares held by Lawnside.

2. 4,125,813,235 shares of Kantone were held by the Company. Dr.
Paul Kan Man Lok was deemed to have corporate interest in such
shares held by the Company.

3. 106,050,000 shares of Digital HK were held by the Company and
5,670,520 shares of Digital HK were held by Lawnside. Dr. Paul
Kan Man Lok was deemed to have corporate interest in the shares
of Digital HK held by the Company and Lawnside.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee
shares in subsidiaries held by directors in trust for the Company
or its subsidiaries, none of the directors or chief executive of
the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO) as
at 30 June 2012 as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers.

Limited ( [ Lawnside ] ) ¥ & ° Lawnside (i & X %%
M+ ER2EHEE -N-_T——FXA=1+8"
Lawnside$$ B A~ A &) & 80 B B TR A 4927.47% 1
o BN TR AN %S B Lawnsidet B 2 IR
RN B -

2. 4,125,813,235 % BB M A AR RIFAE o M XEH
THRABREZER AR RN PHES AR o

3. 106,050,000 8 HIEE B RGO B AR BHFH -
5,670,5200% #1145 &8 M 17 Bl Lawnside A& © &3
248+ R BN AR B K Lawnside s B 2 % S 815
BB PR QB o

B EXPHEEE LR ESEUARRIREMB AR 2R
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—ZFARNA=TH  RIBEEFMIEGDIFEI5215R
EARRATHFE 2 ERMATRCE » SREC LM
TABFETERRSNEETADARRABARZS
FRSITERZBA - AR RS EERITRAEMEAL
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XVER) Z Bty - MR RESFPHA I ESA

A
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries, other than
Kantone and its subsidiaries (“Kantone Group”) and Digital HK and
its subsidiaries (“Digital HK Group”), had the following transactions
with Kantone Group and Digital HK Group:

SEFRANRMERS 2 M

RAFER  ARARENBAR(FBRENER
A(EREEDARBESSRANBAR((HEE
BEE DRI B REREEREBESEELTT
535

Transactions with ~ Transactions with
Kantone Group Digital HK Group
HEREE HYEEEER
ZR5 ZR5
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTExT FET
Fees received for the provision of office premises and ~ 3ZA AR EFE U AR E B A S
facilities, and management services, on cost basis RBANEEREZER 900 540
Annual fee and technical fee paid (Note) S EE BT E R () - 40

Note: Digital HK Group had provided e-payment platform services to a
subsidiary of the Company at a fee chargeable with reference to
comparable market price as agreed.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors, the
above transactions were carried out in the usual course of
business and on normal commercial terms and are in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Apart from the above, details of other connected transactions are
set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

The aforesaid transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules and are exempt from
reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Save as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance
between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the Company
(as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, including
the provision of services to the Group.

MiEE - BSEBEERHEAIRT ARG T AR E—HH
BRF - BEZWBETSEANE LI HIHER

BUEHTESRA - LRRB TR R LB
EEE R REEEZSR S 2R RET T
HERBLHAEATAR  LHARATRREE
3% -

B bt - BAaRlER 52 F1E - MRRE M5
EMIFEB5 o

BB TR DR ZERFEFERS - LR
RET ETRAUEVIATIE 2 I - D5 RBRY
HEZHRE -

B EXRREESN - RAR S EEAN B ARG ES
SR ANEE 2 AR SR S AR B AR D AR B 2Rt
FEARTEFERRARBEEEAEGZ ZEREGH -

B EXXPrRERE SN - AEBEARR K EEAHEL
AlZERBR(EER ETRAD LB IEMNEARS
H(REAASERERS) -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER FERR

As at the 30 June 2012, the following person (other than the HKZ-ZE—=—FXA=+H ' BIEZELERBEEEHE
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests in the 336 EARNTETEE 2 B MATELE - THIA
share capital of the Company as recorded in the register required 4= (A B E BRITHE LN AR T2 IR A %

to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO: BREZ
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Number Description of underlying issued share
Name Capacity of shares derivatives shares capital
EEBITRA
=y 227 BROEE FTET AR HERGHE 2=
Lawnside (Note) ( fff ) Beneficial owner 1,682,281,441 - - 27.47%
ks 2PN
Note: See Note 1 to the “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in i3t : 2 L& EE 2 FHEE KA |~ -
Securities” section above.

Save as disclosed above, no person had any interests or short B EXFIHEZEEIN R-T——FA=1+H 1§

positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company  EARRRIIREH M EENIE336IEATFE ZERL
according to the register required to be kept by the Company  fit - #EEHE M A TR ARQ R ZBDSAERER S P A

under Section 336 of the SFO as at 30 June 2012. EAERRTOAR -
CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, RS - BRE  RRERRE
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS ARER

The Company and its subsidiaries had no outstanding convertible ~ AR BRI REMBARNR _ZT——FA=THIET
securities, options, warrants or similar rights as at 30 June 2012. Al ARITEE 2 AIHRAREE 5 « BEIRAE - SRARIEE SR L
TR

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE [BE » HESREEAX AR Z LHES
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries G R * AR RIS E T BARMEEE - HEkE
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed EERARQAFZ FHESH -

securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS BRBRE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the  ANAFZARIAHAISK B EELGIAL EH B TAELE
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige &2 53X BEARARERLHIAIBEEREIR2 %
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing  &#f% °

shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FERFRHER

The Group sells its products to customers who act as its AEEREAESEE 2 ELEEER  WItEAR
distributors, and purchases materials and components from R 2 HEMEE R LRSH -

suppliers who act as its merchandisers.

For the year ended 30 June 2012, the aggregate amount of #HE—Z——FXA=Z+RAIFE  AEEFTARK
turnover and purchases attributable to the five largest ultimate  FPREEEEBLZSHHELREEMEZALE
customers and suppliers through these distributors and FBERBEEESAIMGASEZBAEEBLBEESET
merchandisers respectively represented less than 30% of the  &30% °

Group’s total turnover and purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders, HEFREE  HBE A LHBEEMMNEERQF
which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of — EE{TRANE% A £ Z BRERAQ T HAR Ptk
the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in the share &2 BEAN R (E A 125 ©

capital of the five largest customers or suppliers of the Company.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group for its employees takes into
account of the individuals’ merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
recommended by the Human Resources and Remuneration
Committee of the Company, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics. Details of the directors’ emoluments for the year ended
30 June 2012 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set
out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Paul KAN Man Lok
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
28 September 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Exchange”) has made some amendments,
with the implementation date on 1 April 2012, to the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). The Company met all the code provisions of the
Code and the amended Code in the year ended 30 June 2012.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors of the
Company, and they have confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 30
June 2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a board of directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. The directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the
Group’s affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for the
Group’s activities with a view to developing its business and
enhancing shareholders value.

The Board held 8 meetings during the year ended 30 June 2012.
All directors attended these meetings. The composition of the
Board during the year was as follows:

Executive directors

Dr. Paul KAN Man Lok* (Chairman)

Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung* (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LAl Yat Kwong

Non-executive director
Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Terry John MILLER

Mr. Francis Gilbert KNIGHT

Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY

Mr. LEE Chi Wah

* Dr. Paul KAN Man Lok and Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung are brothers.

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Company held one
general meeting. All directors, except Mr. Terry John MILLER and
Mr. LEE Chi Wah, attended the meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

Dr. Paul KAN Man Lok, Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung, Mr. LAl Yat
Kwong, Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling, Mr. Terry John MILLER, Mr.
Francis Gilbert KNIGHT, Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY and Mr. LEE
Chi Wah engage in business activities in their respective fields
as continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. Mr. LAl Yat Kwong
has also participated in continuous professional development
programs required by The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The Company is committed to arranging
and funding suitable training to all directors for their continuous
professional development. During the year ended 30 June 2012
and up to the date of this report, the Company has arranged
Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung, Mr. LAl Yat Kwong and Ms. Shirley
HA Suk Ling to attend a seminar on “Corporate Governance
Code and Rule Amendments” organized by the Exchange in
November/December 2011. The Company has also provided all
directors with (i) the amendments to the Listing Rules in respect
of corporate governance which took effect in January and April
2012; and (i) the Directors’ Practice Notes (Issue 1) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Each of the directors has noted
and studied the above documents.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are separate and performed by different individuals with a clear
division of responsibilities.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for setting
its agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by
other directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board,
he is responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are followed by the Group.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors of the Company are appointed for
a term of up to about 3 years ending on the date on which the
directors shall retire by rotation at the Company’s annual general
meeting in accordance with the Code and the Bye-laws of the
Company.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) has 3 members, comprising Mr.
Francis Gilbert KNIGHT and Mr. Terry John MILLER (independent
non-executive directors), and Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung (executive
director). The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Francis
Gilbert KNIGHT.

BEEg
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+ - B %L - Francis Gilbert KNIGHT4E 4 ~ Frank
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE - continued

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and approved the
Group’s remuneration policy, including that for the executive
directors, and the levels of remuneration paid to executive
directors and senior management of the Group. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee follow the guidelines
set out in the Code and it is responsible for, among other things,
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management.

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Remuneration
Committee held 2 meetings and work performed included
reviewing the Group’s remuneration policy for its executive
directors and senior management and their levels of remuneration.
All members attended these meetings.

For the year ended 30 June 2012, the remuneration payable to 10
members of the senior management of the Company were within
the range of HK$0 to HK$1,000,000; whereas the remuneration
payable to 4 members of the senior management of the Company
were within the range of HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee has 5 members, comprising Mr.
Frank BLEACKLEY, Mr. Francis Gilbert KNIGHT and Mr. Terry
John MILLER (independent non-executive directors), Ms. Shirley
HA Suk Ling (non-executive director), and Dr. Paul KAN Man
Lok (executive director). This Committee is chaired by Mr. Frank
BLEACKLEY.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
determined with reference to the Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential
new directors and making recommendations to the Board for
decision. A director appointed by the Board is subject to re-
election by shareholders at the first annual general meeting
after his/her appointment. All directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every 3 years. In accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws, one third of the directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders at each
annual general meeting of the Company.

Potential new directors are selected on the basis of their
qualifications, skills and experience which the Nomination
Committee considers will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board.

No new director was nominated for appointment during the year
ended 30 June 2012.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the year
ended 30 June 2012 and work performed included reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company. All members attended these meetings.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has 5 members, comprising Mr. Francis
Gilbert KNIGHT, Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY, Mr. Terry John MILLER
and Mr. LEE Chi Wah (independent non-executive directors), and
Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling (non-executive director). The Chairman
of this Committee is Mr. Francis Gilbert KNIGHT.

The Board has adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the Code and has delegated the
Group’s corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, with the inclusion
of the corporate governance functions, follow the guidelines
set out in the Code. The Audit Committee is responsible for,
among other things, reviewing the Group’s financial information
and its financial reporting and internal control system, including
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function. The Audit Committee reports to the
Board any significant issues relating to its terms of reference.

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Audit Committee held
2 meetings and work performed included reviewing the Group’s
interim and annual results as well as its internal control system. All
members attended these meetings.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2012, the fee for the Company’s
external auditors for audit services was HK$6,275,000 (2011:
HK$5,634,000) and that for non-audit services mainly relating
to taxation matters and other services was HK$320,000
(2011: HK$1,334,000).

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 30 June 2012, the directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors
have prepared the financial statements of the Company on a
going-concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached
to the Company’s Financial Statements for the year ended 30
June 2012.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system
with an aim to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the
Company’s assets in compliance with the provisions of the Code.
The purpose is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatements, errors, losses or fraud, and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in achieving the
Group’s business objectives.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages Ms. Jennifer CHEUNG Mei Ha, a
practising solicitor in Hong Kong, as its company secretary. Its
primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Leo KAN
Kin Leung, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company maintains an on-going dialogue with the
Company’s shareholders through various channels including
announcements and annual and interim reports published
on its website at http://www.championtechnology.com
and the Company’s general meetings. All shareholders are
encouraged to attend general meetings and they may put to
the Board any enquiries about the Group through its website at
http://www.championtechnology.com or in writing sent to the
principal office of the Company at 3rd Floor, Kantone Centre, 1
Ning Foo Street, Chaiwan, Hong Kong. The directors, company
secretary or other appropriate members of senior management
respond to enquiries from shareholders promptly. The Chairman,
the Chief Executive Officer, chairmen of board committees (or
their respective delegates) and external auditors attend the annual
general meeting and are available to answer questions raised
by shareholders. Shareholders may also access the Company’s
corporate website for the Group’s information.

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary, to require a special general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business (including any
proposals) specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may
do so in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B SRS

Deloitte.
=20

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Champion Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 30 to 113, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2012, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY - continued

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors of the Company, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June
2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 September 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEERElaR

For The Year Ended 30 June 2012 &#Z=—F——F\A=1+HILFE

2012 2011
—E-CF —T——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BisE FHERT FAT
Turnover et 6 3,410,999 3,125,455
Direct operating expenses BERIEE AR (2,970,608) (2,741,826)
Gross profit EflgesE 440,391 383,629
Other income HiA 7 10,948 13,199
Distribution costs Vaki=IB® (36,654) (42,590)
General and administrative expenses —MRITHE (191,972 (175,171)
Impairment losses recognised for deposits PIEE MIENFER K AR
and prepaid development costs ZREEE 20 (104,174) (65,720)
Research and development costs expensed T R RIR R A H (17,370) (14,564)
Finance costs CUBCIR%N 8 (3,436) (3,470)
Share of loss of a jointly controlled entity MG — B ERIERI R E 2 BB 19 (21) -
Profit before taxation B A B e 9 97,712 95,313
Taxation credit Dadstiiv ) 10 167 133
Profit for the year AREEHT 97,879 95,446
Other comprehensive income (expense): Hipz2mas(Z) ¢
Exchange difference arising on translation BREHMEEZERER 1,150 (2,134)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERHESEE 99,029 93,312
Profit for the year attributable to: JEAEARF R
Owners of the Company RABHEB A 62,478 56,763
Non-controlling interests FEERR R R s 35,401 38,683
97,879 95,446
Total comprehensive income for the year JERAFE TN
attributable to: Fk:
Owners of the Company ZN/NETEZ=PN 63,125 55,561
Non-controlling interests FEPERR AR A 35,904 37,751
99,029 93,312
Earnings per share SRAER 12
— Basic —HAR HK1.04 cents &4  HK1.15 cents /&1L
— Diluted — i HK1.03 cents &4l HK1.14 cents 7511l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HaMBRRE

At 30 June 2012 R=Z——F"A=+H

2012 2011
—E-C—F —E——fF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
fsE FEx FHT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - R MRE 13 62,565 66,309
Development costs for systems R s 2 %
and networks (BN 14 3,911,482 3,203,621
Goodwill RS 15 36,795 36,795
Intangible assets R EE 16 - -
Available-for-sale investments AMEHERE 17 628,148 628,148
Interest in an associate N—EEE AR 2R 18 - -
Interest in a jointly controlled entity PRS2 ER 19 479 -
Deposits and prepaid development costs e RIEMNBEEKA 20 2,574,430 3,843,105
7,213,899 7,777,978
Current assets REEE
Inventories 75 21 20,621 25,568
Trade and other receivables EUE 5 R EMER 22 1,812,878 1,080,301
Taxation recoverable A E R IE 10 10
Deposits, bank balances and cash FH o RITEBEES 23 280,101 465,247
2,113,610 1,571,126
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables ENE S REMEER 24 94,633 103,388
Warranty provision REEE 25 1,229 1,445
Customers’ deposits HF#&e 3,483 3514
Bank borrowings — amount due within FITEE-R—FR
one year ZIER 26 215,870 225,198
Convertible bond AR ES 27 - 64,341
Overdrafts Y 23 40,164 54,060
355,379 451,946
Net current assets MEEETE 1,758,231 1,119,180
Total assets less current liabilities EELERRDEE 8,972,130 8,897,158
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Retirement benefit obligations RINERESE 9 50,389 61,337
Deferred taxation RIEFIE 28 - 169
50,389 61,506
Net assets EEFE 8,921,741 8,835,652

—E2--FFR |
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
RaMBRRE

At 30 June 2012 R=Z2——FxA=1+H

2012 2011
—E--f —T——F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 FEx FHL

Capital and reserves BRARfF#E
Share capital A& 29 612,502 601,411
Reserves HiE 6,838,214 6,780,821
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 Rl B AJE(G iz 7,450,716 7,382,232
Non-controlling interests JESERR AR R A 1,471,025 1,453,420
8,921,741 8,835,652

The consolidated financial statements on pages 30 to 113 were  F30B £ F 113EM# ARG BEHREE R T —=
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on  FJ/LA =+ /\HAEFSHtAZRERETIZE - WhH 7

28 September 2012 and are signed on its behalf by: BEERRESF
PAUL KAN MAN LOK f#j 7 LEO KAN KIN LEUNG f§ER
DIRECTOR ZE# DIRECTOR ZEZ%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ReRFHERBBR

For The Year Ended 30 June 2012 #Z=—F——F\A=1+HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALNREEAER
Capital Non-
Share Share  Dividend  redemption  General  Capital Merger ~ Tranlation ~ Retained controling Total
capital ~ premium Teserve Teseve  reserve  reserve TEServe TEServe profits Total interests equity
&% FER A&

Bx  REEE RERE  EORRE -RER SRR SHRE  ENER REEM A RREE  RREE
HKGO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO0O HKS000  HKS000  HK§'000 HKS000  HKS000
TEn  TEn TER TEn  TEr TR TER Tan  TEn  TER TEn  TER

A1 duly 2010 RZE-TFtA-A 406842 2003818 1017 5 12366003 125,086 8,358 273 3130264 7062217 133,26 8397533
Profit for he year REREH - - - - - - - - 56,765 56,763 3683 95 44
Eichange diference arising from trenslain B EFES 7B £5 - - - - - - - (1,202 - 12 932) 2134
Totd comprehenshe income for theyer  AEFAAUELE - - - - - - - (1209 9763 5561 31751 8312
Ddends for th year TEERE
- interim - - - 1774 - - - - - (17,774 - - -
i %8 - -G - - - - Sy . . -
~special i) - - 19483 - - - - - (19463 - - -
Diidends pi Bfika - - g - - - - - B S - e
Distibution in specie of shares of WEMYE PR LT
alsted subsidary rte 2) KRR R () - - (19489 - - - - - - (19463 - (19463
Patial dsposal o  isted subsiciary HEDH LHHBAR
(note ) (Hi2) - - - - - - - - 18580 18580 883 19463
Issue of shares as scrip dividend RIARR EMETRG 13750 5087 (18.837) - - - - - - - - -
Dividend fiom a isted subsidiary nfomof -~ RE—F LHHBATIN
shars (te 1) il RE 2 ke
(1) - - - - - - - N AC R T Y4l -
Dhdends pac t non-contrling TR TEERRRERZ
st e . - - . . . . . - SR B
Isse of shares on rights st ofthe RADAETERAEG
Company B3 180819 90409 - - - - - - - M - M8
Share issue expenses BOESIE - 7.4 - - - - - - -y - (7449
Capital contrbutions fom non-contoling.~~ SERTRIER
shareholders A - - - - - - - - - - %287 %6287
Acaistion o additonal iterest e -HHEAR
nasibsday B - - - - - - - - iy i -
194569 86,048 [4157) - - - - - (14.086) 264,304 80,413 344801
At30 Jung 2011 RZE——ERA=TH 601,411 2,001,866 6,014 5 1366003 125,086 8,358 1533 3181961 723682282 1453420 8,835,652
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ReRFHEDER

For The Year Ended 30 June 2012 &2=F—FA=1THIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATREAEL
Capital Non-
Share Share  Dividend  redemption  General  Capital Merger ~ Translation ~ Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve feserve  reseve  reserve TEServe TeServe profits Total interests equity
-0 FER B
B RGEE RERE BERE -REE E5EE  SHERE  ENRRE REER A% RREE REEE
G000 HKSO00  HKS'00D HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000 HS000  HKS000  HKST000 HKS000  HK$000
Tér  TEn TEn T TEr TET  TER Tér  TEn  TEn Tir  TEn
A1 duly 2011 RZE—FtA-A 601411 2,001,866 6,014 5 12366003 125,086 8,358 1633 3181961 7362232 1453420 8,835,652
Profit for the year TEREF - - - - - - - - 62478 62478 3401 97879
Bichange difierence aisng rom tendation B FTE A 7 EB 28 - - - - - - - 647 - 647 503 1,150
Totlcomprehensie ncome fo heyear ~ AEFEEUELE - - - - - - - o7 648 831 B 909
Dividends for he year TEERE
- intgrim - - - 18,136 - - - - - (18,136) - - -
~fndl -%8 - - BB - - - - -y - - -
Diiendsped BfRE - - 30 - - - - - - - (30
Issue of shares s Scrp diidend RARRE METRD 11091 - (1100 - - - - - - - - -
Dividends paid o non-cortroling TRFHERRRER .
inetsts RE - - - - - - - - - Sy (o
Loss on partal disposal of a subsidiary LESANBLAZER - - - - - - - - pay ) 2201 -
Capital contrbutions fom non-contoling.~~ SERRTRIEE
sharefolders pidy - - - - - - - - - - 17463 17463
Roquistion of addifonal interestin WE—HEAR
ashsiay ENES - - - - - - - - ONEH NN B9 B
1101 - il - - - - -Gy 5E (829 (12040
At 30 Jung 2012 RZE-ZEXB=1R 612502 2,091,866 6,125 50 1366003 125036 8,358 2180 323859 7450716 1471005 8,921,741

Notes: P RE -

1. During the year ended 30 June 2011, the Group received dividend 1. BE_T——FA=THILFE  AEBEURDF
from Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone”) in form of shares. N EBEEERAR([FE]) ZRE - WEIK
104,985,012 shares (2012: nil) of Kantone were received. The 5104,985, 012 BARMG (=T —=F : &) - HA
increase in ownership of the number of shares of Kantone has FRRMEE 2GS IEERAR R i R E E R
resulted in decrease in the carrying amount of non-controlling 10,719,000 (=T —=%F : &) ' HHERABNMRE
interests by HK$10,719,000 (2012: nil) with the corresponding i A HERR o
adjustment recognised in retained profits.

2. During the year ended 30 June 2011, the Group distributed a 2. BE_T——FA=THILFE A5EUEDF
special dividend by way of distribution in specie of 11,250,000 RAAR TIPSR 11,250,0008 005 F 78 ([ #5EF
shares of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (the “Dividend B DRMG(TIRERD]) - HERBIBEEAE BITRA
Shares”), representing 7.5% of the issued share capital of 7.5% ° BB 5 2 AF(EEAE19,463,000%8 7T * Ty
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK”), to the shareholders RIBEBBBRMOR DK BB mESR.738 T
of the Company. The fair value of the Dividend Shares was EE o REROH AT BEAKBE SERREERZ
HK$19,463,000 which was determined based on the market 7= %¥18,580,000/8 TLE MR BB ) FIIHERR ©
price of HK$1.73 per share of Digital HK at the distribution date.
The difference between the fair value of the Dividend Shares and
the carrying amount of the interests in Digital HK amounting to
HK$18,580,000 was recognised in retained profits.
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The general reserve represents the reserve arising from the
reduction of the nominal amount of the shares of the Company
(after the consolidation of shares of 25 ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each into 1 share in 2002) of HK$2.5 each by cancelling the paid
up capital to the extent of HK$2.4 on each share of the Company
in 2002.

The merger reserve represents the reserve arising from the group
reorganisation in 1992.

The capital reserve represents the amount arising from a bonus
issue of shares of a subsidiary of the Company by way of
capitalising the subsidiary’s retained profits and deemed capital
contribution from a substantial shareholder.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FeRKRBE

For The Year Ended 30 June 2012 &#Z=—F——F\A=1+HILFE

2012 2011
—E--& —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
Cash flows from operating activities EEBKZRER
Profit before taxation BRELATEF 97,712 95,313
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment WE - BERREITE 12,559 11,339
Amortisation of development costs for RF RS RBERE
systems and networks i 1,250,605 1,271,112
Amortisation of intangible assets BIEE 2 5 = 590
Impairment losses recognised for deposits FhiRe RIENRBEKAMERZ
and prepaid development costs RIERE 104,174 65,720
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEEREY
investments Wi = (109)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BERHREZ
equipment Yz (8) (38)
Interest on bank and other borrowings and FITREMEEZFIBR
finance charges B %E A 3,436 3,470
Interest income FLEMA (7,358) (6,404)
Share of loss of a jointly controlled entity e —M RS0 E 2 EE 21 -
Operating cash flows before movements in BEALEBRI LS
working capital Bem 1,461,141 1,440,993
Decrease in inventories BEZRHL 4,148 1,048
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables  FEUE 5 & EBER 2 (Eh0)5H (584,495) 12,175
Decrease in trade and other payables FERE 5 REMBER 2R (15,820) (7,222)
(Decrease) increase in warranty provision REREY G2 (42) 106
(Decrease) increase in customers’ deposits BEKRE 2 (CRd)1Ein (31) 5
Net cash generated from operations BEEECREFE 864,901 1,447,105
Taxation in other jurisdictions paid BEMEM R AR 2 8 = (7)
Net cash from operating activities CEEBEMEZIREFE 864,901 1,447,098
Cash flows from investing activities REEB RSN
Deposits and prepayments paid in respect of BRRGRBGEAERAZ
development costs for systems and networks BiRe RIENHKIE (471,900) (1,532,700
Addition of systems and networks NE R B (458,562) -
Additions to property, plant and equipment REME  BEREE (10,530) (15,505)
Capital contribution to a jointly controlled entity A —f RN ETE (500) -
Interest received BUFIE 7,358 6,404
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEEREREZ
investments HIE - 109
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME  BMENEEEZ
equipment B 106 97
Net cash used in investing activities REBHFEZRSFE (934,028) (1,541,599
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Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings
New loans raised
Redemption of convertible bond
Dividends paid
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary
Interest paid
Net cash receipts from rights issue
(net of issue costs of HK$7,448,000
in the year ended 30 June 2011)
Capital contributions from non-controlling
shareholders

Net cash (used in) from financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year

Effect on foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Represented by:
Deposits, bank balances and cash
Overdrafts

MEEZHZHDR
BEEE
MEEZER
BRI E S
ERRE
S IR RS 2 AR
Wi — RPN RIS MR
ERFE

ks ReFR(ENREE"F

——EXAZTRILFEZRITE
7,448,000/ 7T)
FEPR AR AR R
B
mMEEH(FTFE) 52 R e F5

RekReER 2O )EM

5

FRER

RESH
Ex2H2YE
RS RELSH
Bt

Fa o BOIBHERS
F

2012
—ZF-=F
HK$°000
Tz
(264,449)
256,000
(64,341)
(13,059)
(12,274)

(5,070)
(3,436)

5,231

(101,398)

(170,527)

411,187
(723)

239,937

280,101
(40,164)

239,937

2011
—T——F
HK$'000
FET

(461,492)
456,000

(9,108)
(6,152)

(3,470)

191,660

96,287

263,725

169,228

241,241
718

411,187

465,247
(64,060

411,187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRaMBEREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2012 BE2=F——F/ A=THIFE

38

GENERAL

Champion Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was originally incorporated in the Cayman Islands but
subsequently re-domiciled to Bermuda and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information
section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar because the Company is a public
company with its shares listed on the Main Board of the
Exchange. The functional currency of the Company is
United States dollar.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries, a jointly controlled
entity and an associate are set out in notes 37, 19 and 18
respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) has applied a
number of revised standard and amendments issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) that are mandatorily effective for accounting
periods beginning on 1 July 2011.

The adoption of the standard and amendments in the
current year has had no material effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretation that
have been issued but are not yet effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) - continued

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Amendments to Hong Kong
Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 1

Amendments to HKAS 12
Amendments to HKAS 32
HKAS 19 (Revised 2011)
HKAS 27 (Revised 2011)
HKAS 28 (Revised 2011)

HK(FRIC)* — INT 20

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2015.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2012.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2012.

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009 to 2011 cycle!

Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities!

Mandatory effective date of
HKFRS 9 and transition
disclosures?

Consolidated financial statements,

joint arrangements and
disclosure of interests in other
entities: Transition guidance’
Financial instruments?
Consolidated financial
statements?
Joint arrangements!

Disclosure of interests in other
entities'
Fair value measurement!

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income?

Deferred tax — Recovery of
underlying assets®
Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities*
Employee benefits!

Separate financial statements!

Investments in associates and
joint ventures'

Stripping costs in the production
phase of a surface mine!

IFRIC represents the IFRS Interpretations Committee.

BRG] R EIET B BB ERE

ZR(EBMKEREER ] -»

BB S ER —ETNFEZT——
EHEN FRH BAIHHR

AR F

ERUBHREENETR HE-HESREEK
EHIES SRAaRE

BAPBHREENESR BEUEREERFESR
&%;%ﬁﬁﬁ&iﬁﬁu ZoREIE AR B E R
BIHFIEETA BRI R

EEUBREENEI0 SAMBRE BAT
i BREBHREEN HREEREGESR
FURLBETHER 2 BEMEES
4R E 125 B ET AR

EAMBHRE LN LR SRIA?

BB B RS ER IRE MRS
F105%

BB RS2 B AT

1158

BB B RS ER KBEREMEE 2
F125%

BB B EER AEEEE
£135%

EEgER([BH
SEER DE1RE
HE
A ETAERE 125
EHEN

BAELRERE325%
CHES
BEFHERIE19%
(:%ff KEET)

BEEERIE27H
( T——FET)

B ERFE285
(Z=—F ﬁ<«f|k.J)

&5 (BB BRERE
ZE2) —REF205%

Hitt 2 EWEIR R 250

EIERE — W E iR R
Es

BiHeREERSRE
f&

BB
B MBS

BN ] R A A
NN oS

ZEE!
BRBESEEREZR
BRAA

y R-B—=F—A— BHAERIa 2 FEHR

R ©
2 R-ZT—RF—A— Bz AEFRR 2 FEH
R ©
3 RZZT——FtA— B AEFIR 2 FEH
R ©
4 R-ZT—NF—A— B AERR 2 FEH
R ©
5 RZZT——F— A — B AERR 2 FEH
R ©
* BIFR B 53R 5 ZE BRI ®RE
BZEg -

“2--FFR | TENKEEERLF 39



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i S MRS e

For The Year Ended 30 June 2012 &#Z=—F——FSA=1HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) - continued

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

° HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement” to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

° The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding
the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities relates to the presentation of changes in the
fair value of a financial liability (designated as at fair
value through profit or loss) attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to
a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) - continued

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future is expected to have significant
impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s
financial assets but not on the Group’s financial liabilities.
The directors of the Company are in the process of
assessing the impact on application of HKFRS 9.

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27
(Revised 2011) and HKAS 28 (Revised 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described
below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements” that deal with
consolidated financial statements and HK(SIC) — INT 12
“Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”. HKFRS 10
includes a new definition of control that contains three
elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal
with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”
and HK(SIC) — INT 13 “Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers.” HKFRS 11 deals
with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control should be classified. Under HKFRS 11,
joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint
ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the
parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31,
there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled
entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly controlled
operations.

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to
be accounted for using the equity method of accounting,
whereas jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting or
proportionate accounting.

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) - continued

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
12 are more extensive than those in the current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application
is permitted provided that all of these five standards are
applied early at the same time.

The directors of the Company anticipate that these
standards will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for annual period beginning 1 July
2013 and are in the process of assessing the impact on
application of these standards.

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The standard defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring fair value, and requires
disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of
HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except
in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those
in the current standards. For example, quantitative and
qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value
hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only
under HKFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures” will
be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities
within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS
13 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1 July 2013 and
are in the process of assessing the impact on application of
HKFRS 183.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) - continued

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in either
a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. However, the amendments to HKAS 1
require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax
on items of other comprehensive income is required to be
allocated on the same basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items
of other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly
when the amendments are applied in the future accounting
periods.

The amendments to HKAS 19 change the accounting
for defined benefit plans and termination benefits. The
most significant change relates to the accounting for
changes in defined benefit obligations and plan assets. The
amendments require the recognition of changes in defined
benefit obligations and in the fair value of plan assets when
they occur, and hence eliminate the “corridor approach”
permitted under the previous version of HKAS 19. The
amendments require all actuarial gains and losses to be
recognised immediately through other comprehensive
income in order for the net pension asset or liability
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position to reflect the full value of the plan deficit or surplus.

The amendments to HKAS 19 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and require
retrospective application with certain exceptions. The
directors anticipate that the amendments to HKAS 19
will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1 July 2013
and that the application of the amendments to HKAS 19
may have impact on amounts reported in respect of the
Groups’ defined benefit plans. However, the directors have
not yet performed a detailed analysis of the impact of the
application of the amendments and hence have not yet
quantified the extent of the impact.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards, amendments
and interpretation will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

Dividend payable is recognised when the dividend is
appropriately authorised and is no longer at the discretion
of the Company, which is the date when the declaration of
the dividend is approved by the shareholders or when the
dividend is declared.

Dividend payable is measured at the fair value of the
interests in a subsidiary to be distributed. On the settlement
of dividend payable, any difference between the carrying
amount of the interests in a subsidiary distributed and the
carrying amount of the dividend payable is recognised in
retained profits.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating units, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed.

Income from licensing is recognised when the relevant
softwares are delivered and title has passed.

Service income relating to sales of systems products,
software licensing and customerisation is recognised when
services are rendered.

Dividend income from other available-for-sale investments
are recognised when the Group’s right to receive the
distributions has been established.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
assets under operating leases, is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease term.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following rates
per annum:

Freehold land Nil
Leasehold land Over the shorter of the remaining
unexpired terms of the relevant

leases or 50 years
Buildings 2% — 5%
Plant and machinery and 10% — 50%

telecommunications networks
Furniture and fixtures 20% — 33/:%
Motor vehicles 25%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element
of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is released over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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3.

48

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately
and from business combinations are recognised at cost
and at fair value at the acquisition date respectively. After
initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the
asset is derecognised.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Deposits and prepaid development costs represent the
development costs for systems and networks projects
under construction by the system developers. Deposits and
prepaid development costs are transferred to development
costs for systems and networks when it is implemented for
its intended use, and are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Development costs are recognised only if all of the following
have been demonstrated:

= the technical feasibility of completing the asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

- the intention to complete the asset and use or sell it;

= the ability to use or sell the asset;

- how the asset will generate probable future economic
benefits. Among other things, the entity can
demonstrate the existence of a market for the output
of the asset or the asset itself or, if it is to be used
internally, the usefulness of the asset;

- the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the asset during its development.

Development costs that do not fulfill the above conditions
are recognised as expenses in the period in which it is
incurred.

3.
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3.

50

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Development costs for systems and networks, which
are implemented for its intended use, are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation is
calculated based on straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives, subject to a maximum of five years.

Where the recoverable amount of development costs for
systems and networks has declined below their carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to reflect the
decline in value. Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

An item of development costs for systems and networks is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly classified into one
of the two categories, including loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are
set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
deposits, bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments and an increase in the
number of delayed payments.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies in respect of
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, bank
borrowings and overdrafts are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Convertible bond

The convertible bond issued by the Group includes a liability
component, a conversion option, a call and put option
and an extension option. Conversion option that will not
be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash for a
fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
treated as a derivative. Derivatives embedded in a financial
instrument are treated as separate derivatives when their
economic risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contract (the liability component) and
the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or
loss.

The convertible bond (including the liability component, the
conversion option, the call and put option and an extension
option) as a whole are designated as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition. In
subsequent periods, the entire convertible bond will be
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the convertible bond designated as financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Distributions settled in shares are recorded at market price
at the date of issue and credited to the share capital and
share premium, respectively.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets
expire or, when it transfers the financial assets and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect is
material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, interest in an associate is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate, less
any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in that
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are provided only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which venturers have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to as
jointly controlled entity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entity are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in jointly controlled entities
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the jointly controlled entities.
When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled
entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled
entity (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
jointly controlled entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All' other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable and deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on that date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollar) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).
Exchange difference are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposal of.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to contributions.

For the Group’s defined benefit retirement benefit schemes,
the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuation being
carried out every three years and updated annually at the
end of the reporting period. Actuarial gains and losses
which exceed 10% of the greater of the present value of
the Group’s defined benefit obligations and the fair value of
scheme assets at the end of the previous reporting period
are amortised over the expected average remaining working
lives of the participating employees. Past service cost is
recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are
already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the average period until the amended benefits
become vested.

The amount recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised
actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service
cost, and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets.
Any assets resulting from this calculation is limited to
unrecognised actuarial losses and past service cost, plus
the present value of available refunds and reductions in
future contribution to the scheme.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future
cash flows. The amount of impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 30 June 2012, the
carrying amount of trade receivables is HK$1,017,291,000
(2011: HK$843,421,000).

3.

FE BB FUR IR AR 8 2 A B B I AR TS
SHAERZHEURBRERAL

MAKEEERN RN BNTEMS - 2437
@ Z@ZZKBLA?ED‘I‘ 'LLE\DHE/%}*S}T_ 5= ZE'E
ET I RBEMELNRE AT ERETFE
BT o ABE U BT IN R AR B R _E{E R
iﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁ ERENEARREZ RENAEEEL

ATHEBARSERE)10% © QISR Eat
JZEiZ?E%@$ﬁﬁ%THEf%¢E@?DM§E%
B2 RIS AT RN ERR - MELARSE BB 2
BRI AR Eﬂ‘lgﬁﬁﬂ?i’/]i,ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%?%—’%%
iH - BEEKERIZRIRABBRIL

AR E B SIA Ri’%ﬁﬁufZi%’ETﬁ? T FEAR A&
E2RE  WERRERZIBERERARER
Z BRI AIEL TR - M&Bzﬂ'%' ﬁFZ
ATEENR - RUEAEEEZEAEER
RARERIEE B RBERBEA 737]11—]@]

R E TR 2 RRERIVR 2 BRUE ©

AR T REE 2 EERIR

AT RBBAARZ EERMER - ARSI
R TR EMEENRR - HFERE
BHREERABZREEN T —EFBFEL
REAFEZEANER -

HERBSEBRREHERESE  A5H
o EBEARNIE S RIED B o MEEIEH
BORBEEFEEENCHEERERF
K (AR IATER BT E 2 ERFIR) AR 2
Bt RRBRESR(TREENALBEZAREER
E18) 2 IREMEBER 2 ZETE o WEBEARRK
BemPRES - BlaJeeEEERNRES
B-R-T——F A=1H  BREFEX
2 BRIEIE 51,017,291,0008 T (ZF——4F -
843,421,000/87T) ©

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012



KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual useful life is less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 30 June
2012 and 30 June 2011, the carrying amount of goodwill
was HK$36,795,000. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 15.

(1) Estimated useful life
The estimated useful life of the assets reflects the
directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the
use of the development. Where the actual useful life
is less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise.

(2)  Estimated impairment

Determining whether development costs for systems
and networks, and deposits and prepaid development
costs are impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use on a project-by-project basis. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flow expected to arise from the continuing
use of the assets or since successful launch of
technology projects and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. The Group
estimates its cash flow projection covering a period
up to five years based on financial budgets approved
by management and a discount rate ranging from
10% to 20% (2011: 7%) per annum.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

(2)  Estimated impairment — continued

The directors also consider the revenue and
operating costs of the technology projects in the
coming years will be in line with the Group’s budgets,
taking into account of current economical factors.
In the event that the technology projects are not as
well received by the market as anticipated, these
development costs for systems and networks and
deposits and prepaid development costs may not
be fully recovered and impairment loss may arise.
In the event that the developers fail to perform
their obligations to develop the technologies as
required, the Group will estimate the future cash
flows from recovering the deposits and prepaid
development costs from developers. As at 30 June
2012, the carrying amounts of development costs
for systems and networks and deposits and prepaid
development costs were HK$3,911,482,000 (2011:
HK$3,203,621,000) and HK$2,574,430,000 (2011:
HK$3,843,105,000) respectively. Impairment loss has
been recognised with details set out in note 20.

As at 30 June 2012, the aged analysis of the
deposits and prepaid development costs comprised
of balance less than one year of HK$471,900,000
(2011: HK$1,532,700,000), balance between
one to two years of HK$1,532,700,000 (2011:
HK$1,287,780,000) and balance over two years of
HK$569,830,000 (2011: HK$1,022,625,000).

As at 30 June 2012, the deposits paid to the largest
developer and the deposits paid for the largest
project under development accounted for 43% (2011:
39%) and 63% (2011: 71%) of the total deposits and
prepaid development costs respectively.

Determining whether available-for-sale investments are
impaired requires an estimation of future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return of similar
assets and the assessment of the ability for repayment
by the investees. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 30 June 2012, the carrying amount of available-
for-sale investments was HK$628,148,000 (2011:
HK$628,148,000).

4.

BT T EEEZEERE -~

@)  1EEEE—E
BELARBITEERER - R AR
FI8 B R REE 2 WA R4S & kAR
BHEAEBEE - MEHRER Wk
B ZTHEGD - Ak S EA S
W [B 3% & 2 45 K 4948 2 R BE R B i &
R IBAF GBS 2 AR (E 1 o KRR
B KRBT HRSENAERBRZET
BIAREE B AT kE 2 Re
RIBAFEERAZ KRBT - R=ZF
——FRNA=ZTRH  ZFERPE R
AR RS MIBA R A 2 BREE D
A 43,911,482,0008 L (=& ——&F :
3,203,621,000/ 7T.) & 2,574,430,0007%
TT(=Z——4F : 3,843,105,000/7T) °

R EEEF BN FE20 o

RZE——FA=+H K& KrHE
NHAZBKRAZERRISMTBEIR—F
2 4588 471,900,000/ T ( — 2 ——
£ 1 1,532,700,000/87C) * —FEME
2 #5845 7%1,532,700,00008 T (=2 ——
4 1 1,287,780,000/8 7 ) RRFE A L2
4582 /5569,830,0008 T (—ZF——4F ¢
1,022,625,000/87C) ©

MR-BE——FXA=1H ZfFFHK
FAERZZEE IR AEEBFEE X
NzizenlihiEs KB AR AR
REZ43% (=T ——%F :39%) &63%(=
T——F :71%) °

EEAHEERERTRERKBANEENE
B 45 0 R R AR IR M SRR IR IR - AT
REHRZEREN © HEBEBRRKRESR
SRIEH - AIRREEAENRERE - R —F
——FRA=1TAH AHHEREZREER
628,148,000/ 7t (—ZF — — 4 : 628,148,000
BIT) -

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012



5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

As at 30 June 2012, the Group has advance to suppliers of
HK$765,084,000 (2011: HK$204,443,000). The advance
was purchase deposits paid to suppliers of system
products and cultural products.

As at 30 June 2012, the advance paid to the largest
supplier accounted for 28% (2011: 76%) of the total
advance to suppliers.

The directors of the Company consider the advance paid to
suppliers can be recovered on the assumption of realisation
of subsequent sales of related products. In the event that
the relevant products are not well received by the market
as anticipated and no subsequent sales are realised,
the advance to suppliers may not be fully recovered and
impairment loss may arise.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets TREE
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE
Loans and receivables B EMERR

(including deposits, bank balances and cash)

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
— Convertible bond

TRAE

BEpoR

Fail
— AR E 5

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, trade and other receivables, deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, bank
and other borrowings, overdrafts and convertible bond.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2012, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade
receivables, the management of the Group will only allow
customers with good credit history to pay on credit. In
addition, the management reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the future discounted cash
flows, to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on trade receivables is concentrated on
a few distributors. Receivables from top five distributors
represented approximately 77.0% (2011: 80.7%) of
trade receivables at the end of the reporting period. The
management considers that there are no significant credit
risks due to the long and good credit history of these
debtors.

Liquidity risk

In managing of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on
the agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

The maturity analysis for the convertible bond reflects
the contractual maturity, assuming that it will not be early
redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled before
maturity date.

To the extent that the interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount of interest payment is estimated
based on the interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. €@TH &
Financial risk management objectives and R REEREEERBER £
policies - continued
Liquidity risk — continued BB E e — A
Carrying
Effective  On demand Total  amount at
interest  or less than 7-12 undiscounted 30 June
rates 6 months months  cash flows 2012
i
R KUH —FT-—-F
NN 1212 Be&R AA=TH
BERFI= 618 A @A #Em  ZEREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Batk FTER FET FET FTER
2012 —E-CF
Trade and other payables ERE SR EMER = 45,704 = 45,704 45,704
Bank borrowings BITRE 26 192,776 24,367 217,143 215,870
Overdrafts i 43 40,306 - 40,306 40,164
278,786 24,367 303,153 301,738
Carrying
Effective  On demand Total amount at
interest o less than 7-12 undiscounted 30 June
rates 6 months months ~ cash flows 2011
gyl AUE —T——F
BN TE12 RBewk ~A=1A
BIRFIX 6fEA & A #E CEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ekad THET THT FHT TEL
2011 —T——F
Trade and other payables ERE SR EMEER - 53,788 - 53,788 53,788
Bank borrowings BITRE 2.0 225,573 - 225,573 225,198
Convertible bond R ES 1.0 64,662 - 64,662 64,34
Overdrafts i 5.2 54,291 - 54,291 54,060
398,314 - 398,314 397,387
Interest rate risk FlE = b

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank borrowings, overdrafts and
bank deposits. The interest on bank loans is mainly based
on Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate. The Group does
not enter into any arrangement to hedge cash flow interest
rate risk. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arises.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Interest rate risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank
borrowings and overdrafts only, as management considers
interest rates on bank deposits are not subject to significant
fluctuations in interest rates. The analysis is prepared
assuming that the amount of balances outstanding at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year. A 10 basis points (2011: 10 basis points) increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2011: 10 basis
points) higher or lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 30 June
2012 would decrease or increase by approximately
HK$214,000 (2011: decrease or increase by approximately
HK$233,000).

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate which will affect the
Group’s financial results and its cash flows. Certain trade
receivables and deposits and bank balances of the Group
and intra-group current accounts are denominated in
foreign currencies. The Group does not engage in any
foreign currency hedging instruments. It is the Group’s
policy to manage foreign exchange risk through matching
foreign currency income with expense, and where exposure
to foreign exchange is anticipated, appropriate hedging
instruments will be used.

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5.
Foreign currency risk — continued
The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
(including intra-group current accounts) at the reporting
date are as follows:
—F—
Assets
gE
HK$°000
THER
Euro BT 3,652
Hong Kong dollar BT 64,197
Pound Sterling HeE 2,918
Macau Pataca RPHE 2,117
United States dollar ES 1,434

Sensitivity analysis

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign currency
risk from Euro, Pound Sterling and United States dollar.
Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial
exposure on exchange rate fluctuation between Hong Kong
dollar and United States dollar is considered insignificant by
the directors and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been
prepared.

The following table details the group entities’ sensitivity
to a 5% (2011: 5%) increase and decrease in Euro and
Pound Sterling against each group entity’s functional
currency. 5% (2011: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% (2011: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates
an increase in profit before taxation where Euro and Pound
Sterling strengthens by 5% (2011: 5%) against each group
entity’s functional currency. For a 5% (2011: 5%) weakening
of Euro and Pound Sterling against each group entity’s
functional currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit.

2012

EWMITH &

SRR —AE
AEBSERMINEHEZEREERERE
B(BREEAKERRFEZERS D)RERE
HEZAREET

2011
-F —2——F
Liabilities Assets Liabilities
=i BE B
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEL FHBL
346 7,567 459
165 71,673 153
- 1,305 -
58 1,920 56
2,548 771 2,563
BREE DT

AEBERTI2AEZINERBRERT - &
FERET - REBBHBEERKS  EFRAR 8
JTHASETTIE N B 2 B A R AR - 3 A
RELBURE DT ©

TERAADFAEEERUB T REELEE
EERNEEE ZER EFN THEL% (=
T 5%) ZHEE ° 5%(—F——4F :
5%) I RERBAA A EEEEABREINE
R PR 2 R LR - AR EEESH
SNERE = S IR R REREEY 2 FFE - RE DR
BREMNESHEZ RENERIRE - LEINE
EREFHE%(—FT——F : 5%) HHENFRZ
BREEHARE - UTEERREBIT RIS
REEEERYEEEESN(—FE——F
5%) B SIRTLADEM LT o BT MRS
BREBBERNEERRESN(ZF——F
5%) - Rl ENBRIERREE 2 ARTE -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial risk management objectives and
policies - continued

Foreign currency risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis — continued

SRTR &
S E RS TE B RIBUR— 2

SN E B —AE
FREMM —&

2012 2011

—E-—f —T——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTERT FAT

Euro 6 165 355
Pound Sterling T 146 65

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis; and

° for options embedded in the convertible bond issued
by the Group, the fair value is estimated using the
Binomial Model as set out in note 27.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

ERERRFHEBZINERRIT ERRERNZ
R - HEEE ST IRREFINERR -

TRHEERERMBEZATEE

TRBEERSRAE A TEER NIIEERE
T :

s SREEREBMAGBRMEEITETR)
ZAFEERBEBRBARSROMIZAR
EEEAET R

o BAREMRBTESBEEENZ AT
&% - AT EEAN 27 EH -8R
R BRI EE -

EEARBBEHERARNGAVBHREIIRZ
RMEERBEZRAEREAHEERS
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

Financial instruments that are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value are grouped into Levels 1 to 3
based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

Convertible bond is measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value and grouped into Level 2. There
were no transfers between levels in the current and prior
years.

5.

EWMITH &

REE R R R ER N FEEE

RIEERRR AT EEFEZSRTE &
BREABREAFEEEEIOR—E2=R-

o  FRZAFEEAENRENERED
SERSHEREERE B2 HECREH
B)MSHZAE -

e FBRZAFEEAEDNNEEXAE
FHABR S — AP JE (E PASN A B £ (B
EBf)REE(BERITE)BRBARK
BEmSHZE -

o  FZRZAFEEAEDNEEXAE
FEACERIRR B 5 B (BAER
BABR) ZHETDEMSH 258 -

AHRBEZ N IR ERRIE A T EE EXT
AFBZR - NAFERBEFE - @RITAE
B SR e -
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT

68

INFORMATION

Turnover represents the amounts received and
receivable for goods sold and services provided
by the Group to outside customers, licensing fees
and leasing income received and receivable, and
dividends received and receivable from the Group’s
strategic investments during the year.

The turnover of the Group comprises the following:

Sales of systems and products HEZGREDR
Software licensing BT
Rendering of services RERE
Leasing of systems products HEZXFRER
Dividend income RIS UN

The operating segments have been identified on the basis
of internal management reports prepared in accordance
with accounting policies conforming to HKFRSs, that
are regularly reviewed by the executive directors of the
Company, for the purpose of allocating resources to
segments and assessing their performance.

Three operating segments under HKFRS 8 “Operating
Segments” are identified as follows:

e Systems sales, licensing — includes income from sales
and others of systems products,
software licensing and
customisation, provision
of related services and
sales of cultural products

e | easing of systems products — includes income from
leasing of systems
products

— includes income from
investments

e Strategic investments

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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REBZEXBRETIISE :

2012 2011
—B-—fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FET
2,189,992 1,900,613
1,066,338 1,028,653
66,881 62,089
23,222 22,520
64,566 111,580
3,410,999 3,125,455
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6.

EXRERTEER -

RERAMED B G B R ENES
At 2 AREE S FHREAR - DREE
BE D BEFREUZ B BATEF (B18) -
PEREMBIA ~ BTERKA R AR DB
A EARA Sz (AR F RATER AR A K 2 55 7 P
F) W NAARRATEET -—TELK
EREE —MEZFHEI A AR
BRD B R D BRBET Y -

Unallocated expenses, net

Profit before taxation

AROBEHS 58

BRI BE R

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6.
INFORMATION - continued
The accounting policies of the operating and
reportable segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies described in note 3. Segment
results represent the profit (loss) before taxation
earned by each segment, excluding interest income,
finance costs, unallocated income and expenses
such as central administration costs and directors’
salaries. This is the measure reported to the executive
directors of the Company, the chief operating
decision maker, for the purpose of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance.
Information regarding the above segments is reported
below:
Systems sales,
licensing
and others
REHE -
BRTRERHEAM
HK$000
FTExT
Year ended BE-E-——F
30 June 2012 ARA=ZTHLEE
TURNOVER BEHE
External and total revenue %5155 R 4BUKA 3,323,211
RESULTS ES
Segment result DEEE 71,697
Interest income FEBA
Finance costs B AR AR
Unallocated expenses, net RO RIS — %58
Share of loss of a jointly e — R R
controlled entity TrEZEE
Profit before taxation B Al A
Year ended HEZT—F
30 June 2011 NAZTHLEEE
TURNOVER ]
External and total revenue — $f9MEE R EULA 2,991,355
RESULTS ES
Segment result DEREE 19,069
Interest income FEHA
Finance costs BTSN

B LD BEREHRAT -

Leasing of
systems
products

HE
REEM
HK$’000

TR

23,222

1,503

22,520

(268)

—E-—FFH

Strategic
investments
R

BE
HK$’000
FERT

64,566

42,030

111,580

95,224

| SENKEBMERAT

Consolidated

o)
HK$’000
TET

3,410,999

121,230

7,358
(3,436)
(27,419)

1)

97,712

3,125,455

114,025

6,404
(3,470)
(21,646)

95,313
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6. EHEERIEEHR =
INFORMATION - continued
(b) Segment information - continued (b) DEER
Systems sales, Leasing of
licensing systems Strategic
and others products investments Consolidated
RAHE - HE REEM
BITREREAM ARER RE e
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T T FHx T
Year ended HEZ-T-—-f§
30 June 2012 RAZTHLEFE
Amounts included in the BRstEN R
measure of segment profit EAEE L
or loss: 28
Depreciation and amortisation HER#H 1,261,740 1,424 - 1,263,164
Impairment losses recognised MR MIENRE
for deposits and prepaid KAFERZ
development costs REEE 104,174 - - 104,174
Gain on disposal of property, HEVE  BEK
plant and equipment RAE 2 W ()] - - ®
Year ended BE-T——&
30 June 2011 AAZTHIERE
Amounts included in the RARstEN
measure of segment profit ERISEEZ
or loss: $F
Depreciation and amortisation e R 1,282,097 944 - 1,283,041
Impairment losses recognised FiRe REMFRE
for deposits and prepaid RAFTRER Z
development costs HEEE 65,720 - - 65,720
Gain on disposal of HEAHLE
available-for-sale BEZ
investments e - - (109) (109)
Gain on disposal of property, HEVE  BEK
plant and equipment B EpA e (38) - - (38)

No assets and liabilities are included in segment
reporting as they are not regularly reviewed by the
executive directors of the Company.

HRARAHITESREREERAE
TEHEHEE]  SURBRE ARSI

BEA °
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6. EHEERIEER -2
INFORMATION - continued

(c) Geographical information (c) HEEHR
The following table provides an analysis of the REBOAREFP REEMEMEI D Z
Group’s revenue and non-current assets by location WA RIERENBEDITESIA T ¢

of customers and by location of assets respectively:

Revenue Non-current assets (Note)
WA FRENEE (M)
Year ended 30 June As at 30 June
BZEAA=1THILEE R<A=tH
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-CF —T——fF ZE-CZf —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FTiET FAT FERT FAT
People’s Republic of China  F23E A R A1ET
(the “PRC”), including ([HE] - BEEH
Hong Kong and Macau FORFY) 2,701,344 2,454,240 6,540,181 7,103,421
Europe (mainly United BOM(EZAEE K
Kingdom and Germany) =E) 511,968 474,474 43,046 43,955
Others i 197,687 196,741 2,045 2,454
3,410,999 3,125,455 6,585,272 7,149,830
Note: Non-current assets exclude the Group’s available- Miz: : FRDEETEEAEE 2 AEHE
for-sale investments and interest in a jointly controlled & R —EHEE SIS 2 s o
entity.
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HfblgA
Included in other income is interest earned on deposits and Hih A BEFZRRIBITEATERR 8
bank balances of HK$7,358,000 (2011: HK$6,404,000) 7,358,000/ 7T (= ZF ——4F : 6,404,000 7T)
and nil exchange gain (2011: HK$3,934,000). RIEH W AE(=Z——4 :3,034,00057T) °
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BIEEZA
2012 2011
—E-—f —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTiEr FAT
Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts ERREFRNBEEEZRITEE
wholly repayable within five years MAEZ 28 3,296 2,670
Interest expense on convertible bond MR EEZ T BEFY 140 800
3,436 3,470
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9.

72

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. KRBiAGEF
2012 2011
—E-C—fF %
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTiEr FHT
Profit before taxation has been arrived at BREANRAIE
after charging: 0k -
Directors’ remuneration (Note (i) EEHE (FEEG) 15,473 12,521
Staff costs excluding directors’ remuneration EBERAN(TRIEZEEHE) 106,000 109,914
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RREFEEMER(EERIN)
other than directors’ (Note (ii)) (B3 4,119 8,134
Total staff costs BERALRE 125,592 130,569
Amortisation on: AT &I -
Development costs for systems and networks, R R Rk 2 BB AR
included in direct operating expenses GIAEEZEHRAR) 1,250,605 1,271,112
Intangible assets, included in general and BREEGIA—RE
administrative expenses TEZHEA) = 590
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, — #1% - MERZEZITE
included in general and administrative GIA—RRITHZHEA)
expenses 12,559 11,339
Total depreciation and amortisation e eR 1,263,164 1,283,041
Auditor’s remuneration ZEMH S 6,275 5,634
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BERAI L ZFERAE 1,594,972 1,480,796
Minimum lease payments paid under operating  RRBEEFEC N 2 KIERE
leases in respect of: MRERE
Rented premises REmE 9,685 5,457
Motor vehicles EE 3,355 3,991
Net foreign exchange loss [E 5 51853 2,421 -
and after crediting: REFA
Net foreign exchange gain [E 5 I3 = 3,934
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments 1 & A (&7 7 s - 109
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE - BE M&EE 2 W 8 38
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - continued 9. PFRBIANGRA =
Notes: Bz -
(i) Information regarding directors’ and employees’ (i) EREZSEEEMEe2ER
emoluments
Directors EE
Year ended 30 June 2012 BE-———FXA=+HLEE
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
Fek RIERR BIREF EEME
we HiER BHzE SRR k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FER FTHERT FTHERT FHER
(Note)
(BiFaE)
Executive directors HTES
Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok * &SR
—the Company VNG| - 2,400 3,700 8 6,108
— Kantone —5\ - 57 2,500 2 2,559
— Digital HK —HBEEE = 114 - 4 118
- 2,571 6,200 14 8,785
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung * B R ST A~
—the Company VNG - 1,320 1,600 12 2,932
— Kantone &\ 5 20 - - 25
— Digital HK —YIEEE 10 18 - - 28
15 1,358 1,600 12 2,985
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong * BEKTE
— the Company —AR7] - 892 600 12 1,504
— Kantone —EiB - 57 - 59
— Digital HK —HBEE 10 18 - - 28
10 967 600 14 1,591
Non-executive directors HTES
Mr. Francis Gilbert Knight + Francis Gilbert Knight?t 4+
—the Company VNG| 50 50 - - 100
— Digital HK - YHEE 30 50 = - 80
80 100 - - 180
Mr. Frank Bleackley # Frank Bleackley’t 4#
— the Company VNG| 50 50 - - 100
— Kantone b ] 50 50 - - 100
100 100 - - 200
Mr. Terry John Miller HgRE
— the Company . VNG 50 207 - - 257
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling * BERR Lt
— the Company —ARF] 5 15 - - 20
— Kantone b ] 5 15 - - 20
— Digital HK —HEES = 876 447 12 1,335
10 906 447 12 1,375
Mr. Lee Chi Wah FEELE
—the Company —AR7] 50 50 - - 100
315 6,259 8,847 52 15,473
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - continued 9. BRBIANGEH =
Notes: — continued Bt : —4E
(i) Information regarding directors’ and employees’ (i) FRESHEEME 2 EN —ZF
emoluments — continued
Directors — continued EBFEE
Year ended 30 June 2011 HE-_Z——FA=1THALEE
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions ~ emoluments
ek RIERR RINER FEdika
ik HibER  BReofs BEGEA Fot]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET TET FHT FHT
(Note)
(i)
Executive directors HITES
Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok * g g
— the Company VNG| - 2,246 3,700 12 5,958
— Kantone — Bl - 57 - 3 60
— Digital HK B i - 14 - 6 120
- 2,417 3,700 21 6,138
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung * B R ST A~
— the Company VNG - 1,156 1,600 12 2,768
— Kantone —F&R 5 20 - - 25
— Digital HK —HEES 10 18 - - 28
15 1,194 1,600 12 2,821
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong * BEKTE
— the Company —AR7] - 855 600 12 1,467
— Kantone —FiB@ - 57 - 60
— Digital HK —HEES 10 18 - - 28
10 930 600 15 1,555
Non-executive directors HTES
Mr. Francis Gilbert Knight + Francis Gilbert Knight7t 4+
— the Company —ARA] 50 50 - - 100
— Digital HK —HIBEE 30 50 - - 80
80 100 - - 180
Mr. Frank Bleackley # Frank Bleackley st £#
—the Company YN 50 50 - - 100
— Kantone — Bl 50 50 - - 100
100 100 - - 200
Mr. Terry John Miller EELE
—the Company —ARF] 50 207 - - 257
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling * ERR Lt
—the Company VNG| 5 15 - - 20
— Kantone —Hil 5 15 - - 20
— Digital HK —YIEEE - 836 382 12 1,230
10 866 382 12 1,270
Mr. Lee Chi Wah TEERE
— the Company VNG| 50 50 - - 100
315 5,864 6,282 60 12,521
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - continued 9. KR¥AGEF - =

Notes: — continued Bt : —4F
(i) Information regarding directors’ and employees’ (i) FRESNEEEMeER &
emoluments - continued

Directors — continued -

* The director is also a director of Kantone and Digital & ZEENREBRBIEES2ESE -
HK, both of which are listed subsidiaries of the MEAREAEAARZ EHHIEAR -
Company.

# The director is also a director of Kantone. # ZEEFNTRERIES -

+ The director is also a director of Digital HK. + ZESNABIBEEZES -

The remuneration for non-executive directors comprises IRTES I HMESREESTHS R E BN

directors’ fees and other emoluments which vary with the & BIERHEZZESHE MBMTE -

number of committees on which they serve.

Note: The performance related incentive payment is Mt : IRIERBERZREBIIBLE -
discretionary as recommended by the remuneration BARRIZFMEE GEH% W8 E
committee of the Company having regard to the AEEXBENEETERBEMERE °
Group’s financial results and the performance of the
directors.

Employees ES

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included three AEBRERRGATEFRRE=2(=F

(2011: three) directors of the Company, details of whose —— & ZR)ARRES  BEZHEHES

emoluments are set out above. The aggregate emoluments HFNEX - REBEBRE(ZE—F MW

of the remaining two (2011: two) highest paid employees B)EeHEE(WHFARAES) 2HEEH

of the Group, not being directors of the Company, are as R

follows:

2012 2011
—E--F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FET
Salaries and other benefits HEREMER 2,11 2,813
Performance related incentive payments BRIERRB Rz e 629 277
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFI B = 231
3,400 3,321

Emoluments of these employees were within the following EREEZMEN T T5IEE

bands:
Number of employee(s)
EEAY

2012 2011
—E--F —E——F
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7t —2,000,0007% 7T 2 2

None of the directors had waived any emoluments in both RBEFEEA @ BEEEHELAMNE -

years.
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - continued 9. PFRBIADRA =
Notes: — continued Bt : —4&
(ii) Retirement benefit scheme contributions (ii) RAERIEHEIER
2012 2011
—B--fF = F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHT
Retirement benefit scheme contributions to RASEZ FERFEE 2
the Group’s defined contribution scheme RIKENIET B R 1,082 1,101
Retirement benefit scheme contributions to RASEZ FEREMAEE G2
the Group’s defined benefit scheme RIRBRFTEIER 3,089 7,093
4171 8,194
Defined contribution scheme TEBRAEE

76

Certain subsidiaries of the Company participate in a
retirement benefit scheme covering a portion of their
employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of
independent trustees.

Commencing from December 2000, the Group enrolled all
eligible employees in Hong Kong into a mandatory provident
fund (the “MPF”) scheme. The retirement benefit cost of
the MPF scheme charged to the profit or loss represents
contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the MPF scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the mainland
China are members of government-managed retirement
benefit scheme operated by the respective local government
in the mainland China. The Group is required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

During the year, retirement benefit scheme contributions
paid for the above scheme amounted to HK$1,082,000
(2011: HK$1,101,000).
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9.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - continued

Notes: — continued

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company operate a self-
administered and funded pension scheme. The scheme
provides defined pension benefits related to the final salary
of the members at retirement and their length of service. The
scheme is closed to new members.

The contributions which are determined by a qualified actuary
on the basis of triennial valuations using the projected unit
credit method are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Under the scheme, the employees
are entitled to a pension between 1.67% and 2.50% of
final salary for each year of pensionable service at an age
of 65. No other post-retirement benefits are provided. The
most recent actuarial valuations of scheme assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligations were carried
out at 31 December 2011 by Ms. Alison Bostock, and were
updated to 30 June 2012 by Mr. Amit Roychoudhury (“Mr.
Roychoudhury”), both are Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries
independent from the Group, for the accounting reporting
purpose. The assumptions which have the most significant
effect on the results of the valuation are those relating to the
rate of return on investments and the rates of increase in
salaries, pensions and share dividends.

The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Discount rate R

Expected return on scheme assets TEERET RIS E R
Expected rate of salary increase TEEF S IR
Future pension increases RIRERSTHE

The actuarial valuation updated to 30 June 2012 by Mr.
Roychoudhury showed that the market value of the scheme
assets was HK$284,899,000 (2011: HK$273,552,000) and
that the actuarial value of these assets represented 72%
(2011: 77%) of the benefits that had accrued to members.
A shortfall of HK$20,739,000 (2011: nil) in 2012, which was
the excess of net unrecognised actuarial losses over the
greater of 10% of the fair value of scheme assets and 10%
of the present value of funded obligations, is to be cleared
over the estimated remaining service period of current
membership of 10 years.

9.

BREEAER A —

PRt - —4F

EERETFE &
AARETETHBRARRL - RBETER
IR AIETE o pEEt B TR R B RIR KRS
Z B A B e EL AR 7 A B P AR A 2 SE R AR
B8R o WEBIE TR ERE -

BEEERBEME = FIREFT BN ERE
ETHEEE 2RI DREEEEKER
PRk o IRIBZETE - BB — RN FIE655%
R A SREURIA S » BENTHREFT S1.67%E
2.50% 1B PRt Al RN E 2 BRI FERE
FHtHE - AE BN BRFEMRKEET -
Rz 5t E B ERE G E R EREENAESR
BN _ZT——F+=A=+—HHAlson
BostockZ T # 17 + i B Amit Roychoudhury
%4 ([Roychoudhury#E 4 |) (18 15 A8 1
rEEZREZEERKB)EHNE_T—=
FRNA=TH  UEETEHRESE - Y
HEERFAVEZBREBABKRERRE
k#F& « RS HERSZFHE o

FRZ EEREMRROT

At 30 June 2012 At 30 June 2011
R-B-—-F R-F—%F
AA=TAH RNA=TH
4.30% 5.50%

5.60% 7.00%

2.90% 3.70%

2.90% 3.70%

i® #& Roychoudhury E £ E 1 &2 =T — =
FRAAZTHAZREMERT  EEE
2 T {8 5284,899,00058 7T (=T — — 4 :
273,552,000/ 7T) * MzEEAEZBEEE
R2HAREBEFSENZT%(ZT——F ¢
77%) o KR =%F — — 4 /3 %020,739,000/% 7T
ZE——F  E) 2R BRERIBEE
BFRENREEEAFEBEZI0%RE D
AEBREZ10%(ARSERE) ZHRE &
RER2EE S 2 Bt RIS RF FH(LA105F
fHEH RERE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B REME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2012 &2=F—FA=1THIFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - continued

Notes: — continued

(ii)

Retirement benefit scheme contributions — continued
Defined benefit scheme — continued

BRELAT R — 2

ik : —4&

(i) BIEFEFEGR—F
TEBIEF T E &

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of MEBRRIEIRTEIRGS 2 KSR T E
comprehensive income in respect of the defined benefit RZETEMR
pension scheme are as follows:
2012 2011
—B-—fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
Current service cost BITIRAGARA 2,941 3,658
Interest on obligation EEZFIE 19,055 18,523
Expected return on plan assets HEEEZBHER (18,907) (16,200)
Net actuarial losses BEEREE = 1,112
3,089 7,093

The charge for the year has been included in direct operating
expenses.

REFEH B ABRREERA

The amount included in the consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the Group’s obligations in
respect of its defined benefit pension scheme is as follows:

EAKEZ ERENRKBREMELZ
SR AZRRFBARRE - BT

78

2012 2011

—B-—F —T——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Fair value of scheme assets FrEIBEZ AFEE 284,899 273,552
Present value of funded obligations BeRiEzRE (395,585) (354,616)
Net unrecognised actuarial loss AR BEBETE 60,297 19,727
(50,389) (61,337)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit EREMAEZREZESNT
obligation are as follows:

2012 2011

—E-—fF —E——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT FET

At beginning of the year =] 354,616 328,404
Currency realignment [ 5 AR (12,242) 24,297
Service cost RASACA 2,941 3,658
Interest cost T B A 19,055 18,523
Actuarial loss (gain) BEEE () 43,486 (4,510)
Contributions I 1,347 1,470
Benefits paid Frf$iE (13,618) (17,226)
At end of the year FiE 395,585 354,616
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9.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - continued

Notes: — continued

(ii)

Retirement benefit scheme contributions - continued
Defined benefit scheme — continued
Movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

9. BRBADRF &
M : — &

(i)  RUEFEBIERK
EREAAE & —

HEAEZ ATEEZHOT -

2012 2011

—E-—fF —E——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FET

At beginning of the year F1) 273,552 223,371

Currency realignment & 3,5 (8,993) 16,842

Expected return on plan assets 218 E 7 FBHEI 3R 18,907 16,200

Actuarial gain BEWE 1,384 20,834

Contributions % 13,667 13,531

Benefits paid FrfSiE (13,618) (17,226)

At end of the year FitE 284,899 273,552
The fair value of plan assets and the expected rate of return FrEEERREH AR 2 AT EERES

at the end of the reporting period is analysed as follows: BIEEDHTT :

Expected return

Fair value of plan assets

L ERES STEEEZ AT ERE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E2--F —E——f% —2--F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
Equity instruments ERTHE 5.90% 7.30% 251,497 245,376
Debt instruments BEIA 2.90% 4.30% 32,265 27,355
Other assets HipEE 0.50% 0.50% 1,137 821
284,899 273,552

The weighted average rate of return of assets held is
5.6% (2011: 7.0%). The overall expected rate of return is
a weighted average of the expected returns of the various
categories of plan assets held. The assumptions used in
determining the overall expected return of the scheme have
been set with reference to yields available on government
bonds and appropriate risk margins.

The actual return on plan assets was HK$20,291,000 (2011:
HK$37,034,000).

A DN#E 3955 5 B 2 Pt B BE B # K 735.6%

(ZE——F : 7.0%) - BEHE

EAEERE Ty A

P58 1SRRI < 51 &) & 2 TA M B 37 2 IntE

P - EEA B2 BT

Bl #R AT 62 3 2

RERE 2 E R B2 0% A SR E R

3¢
m °©

FTEIEE 2 B B # £20,291,0008 7T (=&

——4F : 37,034,000/87T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8 M B HE M

For The Year Ended 30 June 2012 8&2=F—FA=THIFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - continued 9. PFRBIADRA =
Notes: — continued Bt : —4&
(ii) Retirement benefit scheme contributions - continued (ii) RIRER T BI ALK
Defined benefit scheme - continued EREIEF & — B
The history of the plan for the current and prior periods is as IEE B R AR KB A HAfE 2 ek an T ¢
follows:
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—B--f C—T——% CZZ-TF CZZTHE CZTT\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FET FET FHET FET
Present value of defined EREAAEEL
benefit obligation RE 395,585 354,616 328,404 303,635 346,394
Fair value of plan assets rEIEEZ ATEE (284,899) (273,552) (223,371) (210,234) (261,287)
Deficit B4 110,686 81,064 105,033 93,401 85,107
Experience adjustments on TElaEzAT
plan liabilities EEE 43,486 (4,510) 40,440 11,059 (12,997)
Experience adjustments on FEEEZ AT
plan assets A (1,384) 20,834 16,112 (16,964) 4,186
10. TAXATION CREDIT 10. BiEE SR
2012 2011
—E-CF —T——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
The credit comprises: TIBREBIE
Deferred taxation (Note 28) IEAER A (M E28) (167) (133)

80

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2011:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits derived from
Hong Kong. No provision for taxation has been made as
the Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived from
Hong Kong. Taxation in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The low effective tax rate is attributable to the fact that a
substantial portion of the Group’s profit neither arises in, nor
is derived from, Hong Kong and is accordingly not subject
to Hong Kong Profits Tax and such profit is either exempt
from Macau income tax or not subject to taxation in any
other jurisdictions.

BHBNER IR B BB Z (G R = AR
16.5%(=—Z——4%F : 16.5%) Z T R 5 - i
RAEEZIWABRIER BRI - MEREE
& BT AR E R IR R o B Ab Rl AR 2 Y
HIZER R A E S B AR E -

BERRERE 2 RERANEE ARG EMEEIE
REBRR - TFEREEE  MBRGNES
ST - Mk Zs 5B B R NRPIPTS Bk
BANE M REM R AN ERBIA -
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10. TAXATION CREDIT - continued

The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the

10. BIBKR -2
KERE Y BHIBE S ReA 2 TSR 2 BBAT

profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of AR
comprehensive income as follows:
2012 2011
—EB——F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTiEr FET
Profit before taxation B A ) 97,712 95,313
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% BEBFEHE16.5%TE 2 1B
(2011: 16.5%) —E——F 1 16.5%) 16,122 15,727
Tax effect of profit exempted or not subject to REMAVAEERCHFH L BA
taxation in other jurisdictions FREF 2 RETE (15,405) (18,356)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for T BB ENIRZ AT 2
tax purposes Bigse e 2,665 15,892
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERFG B OEHR 2 B/AZ
tax purposes Mg e (12,925) (20,250)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZRIBERZ MG E 9,396 7,582
Tax effect of share of loss of a jointly JE(E— RIS % 2 EiE
controlled entity HEge 3 -
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised &) F @1 KRR 2 BHIEEE (152) (819
Others Hi 129 91
Taxation credit for the year AEEZREER (167) (133)
11. DIVIDENDS 11. ®RE
2012 2011
—B-—& —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTiEr FAT
2012 final dividend proposed in scrip form RUARKR B HNREES R
equivalent to HKO.1 cent FROABI(ZZ—5F
(2011: HKO.1 cent) per share, 0B 2 ZT—ZF EHIK
with a cash option RERS - EERE 6,125 6,014
2012 interim dividend paid in scrip form RARRAR B A UREEER
equivalent to HK0.3 cents FROIBIL(ZZF——F :
(2011: HK0.3 cents) per share, 038Nz —F——FEENHH
with a cash option BB - iEERe 18,136 17,774
Special dividend by way of distribution IAEDD IR Z FRIE
in specie (Note) (B3E) = 19,463
24,261 43,251

Note: On 28 March 2011, the directors declared a special dividend
by way of a distribution in specie of one share of Digital HK
for approximately every 527 shares of the Company held. A
total of 11,250,000 shares of Digital HK with an aggregate
market value of HK$19,463,000 were recognised as
distribution during the year ended 30 June 2011.

The proposed final dividend for 2012 is calculated on the
basis of 6,125,016,308 shares (2011: 6,014,110,442
shares) in issue on 30 June 2012.

izt R=T——F=A=-+/\B  BEFSMHRE
B DI ZFRIRE - SRAARER527
B AT AR 3 — IR IS B A A - REE
—T—FNA=tTHLEFERN BHES
19,463,000/ 7T 2 11,250,000 % £ 5 & 1 i
NEERRBDIE °

T FEBRARERE TR ——F
A=+TBRZB#TH6,125,016,3088 (=F
——%F : 6,014,110,442) 5 & -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 M B HE M

For The Year Ended 30 June 2012 8&2=F—FA=THIFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is
based on the following data:

ZRAR
A RSB ESRBF TR TS -

2012 2011
—EB-ZF %5
HK$°000 HK$’000
THERx FAT
Earnings attributable to owners of the Company ~ LAtEGRRERERN 2
for the purpose of calculating basic earnings ARAEBA
per share fefE BT 62,478 56,763
Interest on convertible bond FHARESRFE 140 800
Earnings for the purpose of calculating diluted — UAFTE LM EGRET 2
earnings per share B 62,618 57,563
Number of shares ('000)
REE (AFRE)
2012 2011
—g-=F b G
Weighted average number of shares for the AETESREREF 2 i
purpose of calculating basic earnings per share  FH % EE 6,036,372 4,924,371
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: LTHERKR BESEyE
Convertible bond EE: e 19,388 140,741
Weighted average number of shares for the ETER S EREN 2
purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share A F 1531 2 B 6,055,760 5,065,112

The weighted average number of shares and the effect
of dilutive potential ordinary shares in respect of the
convertible bond of the Company for the purpose of
calculating the earnings per share for the year ended 30
June 2011 have been adjusted on the assumption that the
rights issue of the Company completed during that year on
the basis of four rights shares for every nine existing shares
held had been effective on 1 July 2010.

RAEHE—_T——FRA=THILFEER
ARz AR BB RA R R A AR ES
HEBROBCEEETER - ARTERKRR
FATRZIZERE NBIRBE B ) Bk 3% A
HEBROZERAIER T —TFLH—H
ERMIEHFRE o
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. Y% - MERRE

Plant and
machinery
and tele- Furniture
Landand communications and Motor
buildings networks fixtures vehicles Total
BEREE
T REF REERE HAREE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FET FAT TAL TAL
cosT KAE
At1 July 2010 RZE-ZF+A—H 57,746 959,228 16,754 7,864 1,041,592
Currency realignment BB 1,661 21,487 - - 23,148
Additions NE - 15,166 54 285 15,505
Disposals & - (627) ©) - (633)
At 30 June 2011 RZE——F,A=1H 59,407 995,254 16,802 8,149 1,079,612
Currency realignment [ 5 R (672) (10,938) - - (11,610)
Additions RE - 10,528 2 - 10,530
Disposals HE - (622) - - (622)
At 30 June 2012 R-E-—5XA=1H 58,735 994,222 16,804 8,149 1,077,910
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT WERRME
At 1 July 2010 RZZ-TF+A-A 27,168 932,816 15,825 6,935 982,744
Currency realignment I 5 iR 370 19,424 - - 19,794
Provided for the year FREE 1,606 9,134 256 343 11,339
Eliminated on disposals HERHR - (568) ©) - (574)
At 30 June 2011 RZE——Fx A=1H 29,144 960,806 16,075 1218 1,013,303
Currency realignment (5 (251) (9,742) - - (9,993
Provided for the year FRERE 1,775 10,228 259 297 12,559
Eliminated on disposals T EFER - (524) - - (524)
At 30 June 2012 R-B-—£xXA=1H 30,668 960,768 16,334 7,575 1,015,345
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 30 June 2012 RZE-ZEXA=1H 28,067 33,454 470 574 62,565
At 30 June 2011 RZZ——F,A=TH 30,263 34,448 721 871 66,309
—E-—FFR | SENEEEERAT 83



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2012 &2=F—FA=1THIFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

84

— continued

13. M¥ - - BERRE =

2012 2011
—E-C-F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
The carrying values of the Group’s REBEZYERSERERE
property interests comprise: B
Freehold properties held outside Hong Kong REBEBLAIMNEE IS H KA R W2 13,586 14,396
Leasehold properties: HEME -
Held in Hong Kong NEBEE
— long leases —-RHRY 9,786 10,767
— medium term leases — IR 2,207 2,351
Held outside Hong Kong REBEBUIMREFE
— long leases (Note) —REIRA () 183 230
— medium term leases (Note) — R ERZ2 A (I 5E) 2,305 2,519
28,067 30,263

Note: Owner-occupied leasehold land is included in property, plant
and equipment as the allocations between the land and
buildings elements cannot be made reliably.

At 30 June 2012, certain land and buildings of the
Group with a carrying value of HK$8,128,000 (2011:
HK$8,455,000) were pledged to a bank as security for
banking facilities granted to the Group.

The Group leased equipment to customers on operating
leases terms. The carrying value of such equipment,

MizE - AR RBFRO TR EMES - HA
AERZEET B AN - BB KRR

R-E——FXA=1+H A&EEEREEAS
8,128,000/ 7t ( —Z ——4F : 8,455,000/87T)
ZETIFEFERRTIRT - (EAREE
EBRITRE ZER -

ARBEEERE SR ARRBTES - AH
B2 B EEE A RS BB RE B

which was included in plant and machinery and
telecommunications networks, was as follows:

W REIT

2012 2011

—E-—F —T——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTERr FHL

Customer equipment at cost BERE  BEAE 77,109 80,007
Less: Accumulated depreciation W 2FHNE (76,084) (78,923)
Carrying value SRE(E 1,025 1,084
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AND NETWORKS

14. DEVELOPMENT COSTS FOR SYSTEMS

COST KB
At beginning of the year F1)
Currency realignment BEE 5 %
Additions NE
Transferred from deposits and EEke Rk
prepaid development costs TER B
At end of the year FH&
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT BHENRE
At beginning of the year =)
Provided for the year FRBE
At end of the year F&
CARRYING VALUE fRMAE
At end of the year F&

Development costs for systems and networks include all
direct costs incurred in the setting up and development of
systems and networks and are amortised over the estimated
economic useful lives of a maximum of five years.

During the year, the management conducted a review of
the Group’s development costs for systems and networks
in light of the current market condition. The value in use
was determined based on the estimated future cash
flows discounted at a rate of 10% (2011: 7%) per annum.
No impairment was recognised after management’s
assessment on individual systems and networks for both
years.

14. ZGERABEZBABAE

2012
—E--F
HK$°000
TiEx
8,935,278
(22)
470,794

1,487,694

10,893,744

5,731,657

1,250,605

6,982,262

3,911,482

2011
—T——%
HK$'000
FHEL

8,286,699
9

648,570

8,935,278

4,460,545

1,271,112

5,731,657

3,203,621

R R AR 2 RBERABERIMAZERSR
BB FIEEERA  ZERAN R EA

FH(ZRZOF) TIASE -

FR - EEEEREAT

REAREE 2 ZHER

B RBERAETTER - ERBETREM
SIARKRREMBRFEAOR(ZT——F : 7%)
MINRETE - BEEBHZMEFEARZ @R
SR AR AT RS R L ERERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S MRS e

For The Year Ended 30 June 2012 & Z—F——FA=1HILFE

15. GOODWILL

86

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the following cash generating unit (“CGU"):

15. B2

EBE G BE DR ER D EE T
BREA([FREM]) -

2012 & 2011
“EB-CFR
—2——-F
HK$’000
TiEx
Provision of e-lottery services REEFEERS
(included in the systems sales and licensing segment) Gt ARGHE RISrEN ) 36,795

For each of the years ended 30 June 2012 and 2011,
management of the Group determines that there was no
impairment of its CGU containing goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined from
value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculations are those regarding the discount
rate, growth rate and expected changes to selling prices
and direct costs during the period. Management estimates
discount rate using pre-tax rate that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU. The growth rate is based on industry
growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs
are based on past practices and expectations of future
changes in the market.

During the year, the Group performed impairment review
for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts derived from
the most recent financial budgets and projected for the
next three (2011: four) years based on remaining life of
respective license, taken into account renewed license
period, and discounted at a rate of 20% (2011: 7%) per
annum which reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.
Since the recoverable amount of CGU exceeded the
carrying amount, no impairment loss was considered
necessary.

HE_Z——FR-_ZFT——FA=1THLF
FE - ASEERERT  HAMNREEEZ
B30 B (3 I HERE o

BB 2 AW E SR AE REEFETTA
BE - EREEEEAZ 2RISR
BRIRK - BERRPUREBREEKAZ RS
8 - BEEECATRRE A TSA GRS
B (B I B3R BB 2 455 e [ 2 B AT R R 1 B3R
RIEHEE - BRRUTRERIFQEE -
EBEREERAZ B THABEERIRFEH 2
RRTISEBREAE -

FR - ARERFREEEER IV HEEEL
RIRA R RFERI R B (R RS RTHI R ERT
BHOAAZRRK=F(ZF——F : [UF)
BRI EER - HHBETRERN @ I
AR RRE R SHE 2 R R ERBIRE
R E PR T F20% (=T ——5F : 7%) 2/
X - ARNBREN 2 TN E S ESNERE
B AEERBBREDRESS
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16.

17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS . BREE
Licence rights
e
HK$’'000
FAT
COST %N
Balance at 1 July 2010, WZE-ZF+A—-H-
30 June 2011 and T A=tHRK
30 June 2012 B S YAV ey ol = P17 11,800
AMORTISATION e
Balance at 1 July 2010 RZT-TFA—Hz &R 11,210
Charge for the year F R 590
Balance at 30 June 2011 and T**E/\H THE
30 June 2012 — &R RA=tBZ&H% 11,800
CARRYING VALUE EEE@
At 30 June 2011 and R-B——FXA=Z1+HRK
30 June 2012 —E--HXA=+H -
The license rights for provision of e-lottery businesses were RBAEFE - AR 75”51%&{*—‘* HERER
acquired as part of a business combination in previous ZAFETRIEREBE I —3 D - FHetEARE

years. The license rights have definite useful lives and are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
right granted. These rights were renewed at respective
expiry date.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Unlisted equity securities, at cost

Impairment loss recognised EHERZRESE

The unlisted equity investments represent investments in
unlisted equity securities issued by private entities incorporated
outside Hong Kong holding strategic investments in information
technology and telecommunications industry. They are
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses
at the end of the reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
management is of the opinion that their fair values cannot
be measured reliably.

In the year ended 30 June 2011, the Group disposed of
certain unlisted investments, which were fully impaired in
the past, to independent third parties at a consideration of
HK$109,000. As a result, gain on disposal of available-for-
sale investments of HK$109,000 was recognised in profit or
loss.

17.

FE EMIARES - IRARAE

AERES jﬁ)&*ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ ZHHFEJLAE%%H%
8 o ZERFNES I REELER -

AHHERE
2012 2011
—E-—f —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FET
635,248 635,248
(7,100) (7,100)
628,148 628,148

IE LT IRAIR B RN BB AN R AL -
TREAMBXEEEERFAERBIERE ZAA
BERMAEBETZELMRABS ZRE - ZFR
BRI E H AR R K AN ERAE R REHREE
B8 WHREBAFEERESERE
R BEERERR/AEASEAEEATER -

HE —FRNA=ZTHIEEFE  KEBU
1&(?109,000/%75m%4%fﬁﬁ%%¥15£
EEEEEREREZIELTRE @ YEFL
RIEEER LS A &SR E 2 I3 109,000
T
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2012 &2=F—FA=1THIFE

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R—REME AR ZER

2012 2011

—E2--F —E——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FHEL

Unlisted shares, at cost FELTRG » RRAE 31 31
Impairment loss recognised BRERZRERE (31) (31)
Particulars of the Group’s principal associate at 30 June RZZE——FR=FT—FA=1+H &%

2012 and 2011 are as follows: BESHENF ZFBOT :

Proportion of nominal value of

Place of issued share capital held

Name of company incorporation by the Group Principal activities
rEBHE

NEER SRR 3L 1t 26 ERTRAEELL G TEEK
2012 2011

—E-C-F —T——%F
Belcher Technology Limited ~ Samoa 28% 28% Provision of software consultation
EEDES

service and development of
software systems

RS FARE LB RS
e
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19. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED 19. R—REIHEEHSEER
ENTITY

2012 2011
—B-C-F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TiEx TAT
Cost of unlisted investments in R—EEEH S E 7 IE LT
a jointly controlled entity AR 500 -
Share of post-acquisition loss RIS R EIR (21) -
479 -
Particulars of the Group’s jointly controlled entity at 30 June AEBMPN=_T—=FA=1RH 2 HRZEH®
2012 are as follows: EFBOT -
Principal Proportion of nominal value of
Place of place of Class of issued share capital held Principal
Name of company incorporation operation shares held by the Group activity
iR rEERE
DNRAIER M B L 4755 ERTRAEEL G TEEK
2012 2011
—B--F T
HUNGARY HONGKONG ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 50% —  Provision of promoting,
INNOVATION & B8 ELEk developing and
INVESTMENT marketing services for
LIMITED innovative products
QIR B BEIFIE and solutions
ERAT] REIBERRARREMR
R - FIERIEE
AR5
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s AEER—RHRERCEZ S PBEN
interest in a jointly controlled entity, which is prepared TR R S B TR AN S TBUR — B2 ST ECR
using accounting policies in conformity with the accounting MREL - WIAREREARR - B ZEHIIMT ¢
policies adopted by the Group and accounted for using the
equity method, is set out below:
2012 2011
—E2-C-F —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTiEr TAT
Total assets BEMBE 484 -
Total liabilities a5 ) -
479 -
Revenue LON = -
Loss for the year FAEE (21) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8 M B HE M

For The Year Ended 30 June 2012 8&2=F—FA=THIFE

20. DEPOSITS AND PREPAID DEVELOPMENT 20. &€ RFEBEKA
COSTS
During the year, the management conducted a review of FER - TEERESTREIER EERE MY
the Group’s deposits and prepaid development costs in REE 2IZE MIEMN K AETER » iR
light of the delayed commencement of certain technology Z2EHFRABAEMMGT 2T REEEE  REAS
projects and determined that certain deposits and prepaid ETiRe RFEMREKAELRE - FREE
development costs were impaired based on the estimated Ty AR 1 B 8 ok 3 30 4 IR E F K 10% = 20%
recoverable amounts with reference to their values in use. T ——F 7% MR MEE - BEEAE
The value in use was determined based on the estimated BzhE  BEERTEFANMER 2RERE
future cash flows discounted at a rate ranging from 10% £104,174,0007% 70 (= ——4 : 65,720,000
to 20% (2011: 7%) per annum. Based on the value in use WEITT) °
estimation, management has determined an impairment
loss of HK$104,174,000 (2011: HK$65,720,000) to be
recognised during the year.
21. INVENTORIES 21. 78
2012 2011
—E-C-f —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FAT
Raw materials =R 12,907 16,617
Work in progress ERE 2,443 2,151
Finished goods SRR G 5,271 6,800
20,621 25,568
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. EWEZREAMERMK
2012 2011
—E-C—fF —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTiHERr FAT
Trade receivables FEWE SRR 1,017,291 843,421
Advances to suppliers B IE 765,084 204,443
Other receivables FEME AR BR 3K 30,503 32,437
1,812,878 1,080,301
The Group maintains a well-defined credit policy regarding AREEREEZFRFETHRZEERE - B

90

its trade customers depending on their credit worthiness,
nature of services and products, industry practice and
condition of the market with credit period ranging from
30 days to 180 days. The advances to suppliers and
other receivables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
refundable, and are expected to be realised in the next
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

BREZER  REEREMZED - TARE
KmgiEhme TEENFI0RE180H 2 (5
BH o TR R ARIR K R L A AR AR AR AR
- DEERAER - AR EFIERRE D
SR T EARRER -

CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012



22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES -

continued

The aged analysis of trade receivables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

22, BWESKREMERF -2

FEWE BRI E AR RIRERER 2

BRERDITEZIZAT :

2012 2011

—B-—fF —T——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTER FET

0 - 60 days 0-60H 514,204 399,176
61 —90 days 61—-90H 331,875 306,100
91 - 180 days 91 -180H 171,195 138,139
> 180 days > 180H 17 6
1,017,291 843,421

REMEMHEPH  ARBE B MHESR
BEEREHEEEREP ZEEEER  YRER
PZEER BTEPZEERE2ZTRER
BT METEN - AREZMBRHEEE
BEERRRMAEARBRARRREZEERE S

Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s finance
and sales management team would assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and define the credit limit for the
customers. Limits attributable to customers are reviewed
regularly with reference to past settlement history. The

Group’s finance and sales management team considers
trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to
be of good credit quality as continuous repayment have
been received.

The trade and other receivables that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

HFE—EREERMABREFEELR -

PNl S
W B 5 K HAh

BIRER NI BREHEZE
BRAETIAT

2012 2011

—z-—f —F——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHERT FET

Hong Kong dollar BT 57,355 62,772
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B REME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2012 &2=F—FA=1THIFE

23. DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES AND 23. R BTEHRRRES BX
CASH/OVERDRAFTS
The Group’s deposits, bank balances and cash that REBZZR  BITEGHRIASARBEEE
are denominated in currencies other than the functional BN BN BHEEHE « &S ¢

currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET
Hong Kong dollar BT 6,842 8,901
Euro BT 2,627 5,591
Macau Patacas ol 2,117 1,920
Others Hith 3,641 1,502
The deposits, bank balances and cash comprises short- T RITER R 2 BRBEHER=EHA
term deposits with maturity of three months or less and NAZEBFERRAREREGZRE « TR
cash held by the Group. The deposits carried interest at an FHEF|R0.02E(=ZF——%F :0.03E)FtE °
average rate of 0.02% (2011: 0.03%) per annum.
Certain bank balances and cash of HK$7,643,000 (2011: 817,643,000 L (ZF ——4F : 5,829,000
HK$5,829,000) are denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”), B2 E TRITHEBREREIAARE(TA
which is not freely convertible currency in the international REFHE - M ARBWIERIABIEE % B B
market. The exchange rate of RMB is determined by the Rz B ARMEXRHATPBEBFEE - £
Government of the PRC and the remittance of these funds PRERZEESAIPRBUTER INEE
out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed HIFTRRRR ©
by the Government of the PRC.
The overdrafts which are repayable on demand, carried RIRBAER 2 EX RFBFRETH4.3
variable interest at average rate of 4.3% (2011: 5.2%) B(ZZF——%F : 52[F)5TE o ILoh » BN
per annum. Also, included in overdrafts was an amount BIERE &R 23 %537,0008 T (=%
of HK$537,000 (2011: HK$16,357,000), representing ——%F : 16,357,000/ 7T) °

overdrafts from financial institutions.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

25.

26.

As at 30 June 2012, the balance of trade and other
payables included trade payables of HK$11,855,000 (2011:
HK$21,372,000). The aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

0 - 60 days 0-60H
61 —90 days 61 -90H
91 —180 days 91 -180H
> 180 days > 180H

The credit period for purchases of goods ranged from 30
days to 60 days.

Other payables mainly represent receipts in advance and
accruals.

WARRANTY PROVISION
At 1 July ntA—H
Currency realignment i 5 R
Provided during the year FREE
Utilised during the year FAEHA
At 30 June RAA=+H

The warranty provision represents the management’s best
estimate of the Group’s liability under 12-month warranties
granted on manufactured products, based on prior
experience and industry average for defective products.

BANK BORROWINGS
The bank loans as at 30 June 2012 and 2011 are repayable
on demand or within one year.

The bank loans bear variable interest ranging from 1.3% to
3.2% (2011: 1.5% to 2.7%) per annum.

Bank loans of HK$25,870,000 (2011: HK$31,198,000) are
secured by the Group’s land and buildings with carrying
value of HK$8,128,000 (2011: HK$8,455,000).

24, EREZREMERRK
R-ZT——FA=1H BNESLHEAME
R EHRBTE11,855,0008 L ( —F——4F ¢
21,372,000 L) 2 EN B SRR - BNE S
AR 25 BT AS B AR R B 22 B A 2 BRER D AT
25T -

2012 2011

—EB-——F T4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FiEx FHEL

9,461 11,801

90 522

2,182 7,464

122 1,585

11,855 21,372

BEERZEEHNTI0HZE60H -

R EMREREZERBTERFERBIRER -

25. RERE

2012 2011

—B-CF —T——fF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHEL

1,445 1,142

(174) 197

1,136 1,367

(1,178) (1,261)

1,229 1,445
REBBEEEEBREBALBEENEER
WMERZBEME - A TRKR R 126 ARE

HAT AN 52 B B (E AR 2 SR o
26. SR{TIEE

KRB R-F——F~AS+EZET
SR AR —FNEE -

BITERIENT13EEI2E(—E——&F :
1.5BZE2.7[E) 2 FEFFRFTE ©

R 17 B 725,870,000 8 L ( =& — — &
31,198000 % Jt ) DA A EEE®EE A
8,128,000/ 70( == ——4F : 8,455,000 7T )
2 T AR EAR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M B REME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2012 &#Z=—F——FSA=1HILFE

27. CONVERTIBLE BOND

94

Asat 1 July 2010
Redeemed during the year

As at 30 June 2011
Redeemed during the year

As at 30 June 2012

FREL

FRER

On 19 September 2008, the Company issued a
convertible redeemable bond (the “Convertible Bond”)
in the principal amount of HK$188,553,000 pursuant to
a sale and purchase agreement dated 13 August 2008
between the Company and Lawnside, a substantial
shareholder of the Company (the “Bondholder”). For the
year ended 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2012, the carrying
amounts of approximately HK$72,120,000 (note 31) and
HK$64,341,000 were redeemed respectively. The principal
terms of the Convertible Bond were as follows:

(@)

The outstanding principal amount of the Convertible
Bond may be converted at the option of the
Bondholder in whole or in part into shares of HK$0.1
each in the Company at any time from the date of
issue of the Convertible Bond (the “Issue Date”) up to
the second anniversary of the Issue Date (the “Maturity
Date”), or the third anniversary of the Issue Date if
the Company shall have given written notice for such
extension of time to the Bondholder ten days prior to
the second anniversary of the Issue Date, at a price
equal to the higher of the initial conversion price of
HK$0.70 (after adjustment on 7 January 2011 as a
result of the rights issue of the Company) (the “Initial
Conversion Price”), subject to adjustment; and the
average of the volume-weighted average prices of the
Company’s shares for the ten dealing days ending on
the day immediately preceding the date of a relevant
conversion notice delivered by the Bondholder to the
Company multiplied by a factor of 0.8.

27. KR ES

R-ZZE-TF+A—H

RZZ—% A=1H

RZZE——F- A=1H

HK$’'000
FET
136,461

(72,120)

64,341
(64,341)

REZZEZENFNATNE NARIREEEF
ZRFLawnside([EFRFAANRZZZ/\F
NAT=BFFFIZEEHE BT ASEA
188,558,000/ 7T 2 A] 2 A% Al BE Bl & 5 ([ Al #2
BES]) - HE_FT——FA=THAEK=F
—ZFANA=THLFE  ENRECEREEE
4972,120,000/8 7t (F17E31) }.64,341,00078 7T
Z1EF o AJRRESF 2 EEGFTT ¢
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(M7 RDBR=BITEMAF ([ 25
B])sk3T A = BF(WARBIRET
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1 5 BEO7T0B T (R ——F—
BEREAQNRETHREIELARE)
([MFHBE] A FRAR)RBEES
BB AMAARE AR E B@EmA 8
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27. CONVERTIBLE BOND - continued

(o)  The Convertible Bond bears interest at the rate of 1%
per annum and interest will be payable biannually in
arrears in March and September in each year.

(c)  Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased
and cancelled, the Convertible Bond will be redeemed
at 100% of the principal amount at maturity plus any
interest accrued thereon.

(d)  The Company shall be entitled to require redemption
of the Convertible Bond or any part thereof at any
time commencing from the first anniversary of the
Issue Date at a price equal to such principal amount
of the Convertible Bond redeemed plus any interest
accrued thereon.

(e)  The Bondholder shall be entitled to require
redemption of the Convertible Bond or any part
thereof at any time commencing after the Issue Date
in the event that the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s share on the Exchange for each
of the 15 consecutive dealing days falling within the
period of 30 days immediately prior to the date of
such notice of redemption is less than 50% of the
Initial Conversion Price.

(f) The Maturity Date may be extended to 19 September
2011 at the option of the Company, by giving written
notice for such extension to the Bondholder ten days
prior to the Maturity Date.

As the conversion price was not fixed, the conversion option
of the Convertible Bond would not result in settlement by
the exchange of a fixed amount for fixed number of equity
instruments. Therefore, the conversion option was regarded
as a derivative.

The Convertible Bond included the liability component and
embedded derivatives (including the conversion option and
early redemption and extension options).

The fair value of the liability component of the Convertible
Bond at 30 June 2011 was determined based on the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the average yield of a group of non-convertible bonds
with similar credit rating and structure which incorporated
appropriate adjustments to reflect possible impact of
country factor, firm specific risk and liquidity risk.

27. AIBRRES -~

(o) FIHRESTIREREAEE S - WA
BREF=ARNASEED I -

© BIFTBRREFENRFAERD - ik
SBAREH - DA BRBREFENE
HARS FE O 2 B S R ANMET A AR, o

d) ARFHEEZKEETHIBFRR
BERS AR S R B B AR E S 2 2 A
BRI EET A B 2 B8 B Bl Al R &
H ok E AL

©  BETHEFHEARMRE - HMAXFRS
M2 8 @A H #AT30 B HifF G
B15ER S ANRZ H 2 FHRHEE
R HIEZ250%  BEHFFHEARE
R SKANA BB [ PR B S H A A

B °

(0 AAATRBREBME A AESS
BARLEEBN - FSHMEFEE
F——FAATAR

AR EIREILIEEE - AR E S e
BASEBIZEESARNEEHRE 2R T
H o At - ABERRAITETA -

HBRESEFEESI RASITETA(R
BRME IR RO MR ) -

R-Z——FRA=1TH  AERESEES
DZAVEE  HRBEGEFARRRER - B—
HEAREEERRIRE 2 TH L ES
ZFHmEE - RS EHEARREREA
= RARERRERSERRER - BhE 2R
EMEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M B REME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2012 &2=F—FA=1THIFE

27. CONVERTIBLE BOND - continued

The fair value of the conversion option embedded was
calculated using the Binomial model. The key inputs were as

27

. AIBRESF - &
2 Mgy AT EEN S ER REE EER
S8 o SRR FAY F BB T :

follows:
At
30 June 2011
RZT——F
NA=1H
Stock price ] HK$0.1527% 7T
Exercise price 1TE B HK$0.70/& 7T
Expected volatility BHEK IR 25%
Maturity life BEEE 0.2 year4F
Risk-free rate ERBRFIE 0.06%
Expected dividend yield TEHERR B 3.5%

The change in the fair value of the Convertible Bond was
insignificant in both periods and hence no fair value change
was recognised in profit or loss. The Convertible Bond
bore interest at 1% per annum payable semi-annually. The
outstanding principal sum of the Convertible Bond as at
30 June 2011 was fully redeemed by the Company on 19
September 2011.

28. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the deferred taxation liability recognised and
movement thereon:

28.

RAESEA SR ES 2 A FEELES K
2y WWEPNEST AT EEZES - 7
BIRER HREFFIEFEREBEED X
i e RZZE——FXA =+ B R EE AR
BHEZASRFEN—"Z——FNATILEE
ARAREZHED -

EERIR
ERRZEEHEAERLEDHIILT -

Accelerated tax depreciation

MERIERE

2012 2011

—E-C-F %5

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Balance at beginning of the year FEEH 169 281
Currency realignment [ 5 A 2) 21
Credited to profit or loss FABE (167) (133)
Balance at end of the year FrRER - 169

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses of approximately HK$515,917,000 (2011:
HK$459,897,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. These tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

RBEPRTLER  AEEERBAZHE
B8 4 515917,000 8 T (=T — — &F
459,897,000/87T) + Al AEE B A& 25 o
R REETERT B8 2 S FISRR » B0 £& FERR iR
IEFRIE & E o b R TE S 8 A & (R B AT 45
;3;; °
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29. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised share capital of HK$0.1 each:

Balance at 1 July 2010,
30 June 2011 and
30 June 2012

Issued and fully paid share capital of
HK$0.1 each:

Balance at 1 July 2010

Issue of shares upon rights issue

Issue of shares as 2010 final
scrip dividend

Issue of shares as 2011 interim
scrip dividend

Balance at 30 June 2011 and
1 July 2011

Issue of shares as 2011 final
scrip dividend

Issue of shares as 2012 interim
scrip dividend

Balance at 30 June 2012

During the year, the following changes in the share capital FR -

of the Company took place:

29. BR7

BIRAEVBITEERA ¢
i

“T-EF+A—H-
—EXNA=TER
“E-FRNAZTRZER

FRAEABTLLEETR
BRBA

R-ZE-ZELA—-H 2R
IR P17 2 IR

MR BEITRINER =S —TF
R
MEREBBETRNER-FT——F
S

RZB——FX A=THEK
“E—FtA-HZ&H
UEREBBETRNER-F——F
REBR

DR BETRINMER T ——F
RHIRRE

RZB-ZFXAZ+HZ&R

(@)

In January 2012, 31,349,119 shares of HK$0.1 each
were issued at a price of HK$0.1 per share upon
election by shareholders to receive shares in the
Company in lieu of the 2011 final dividend in cash,
pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme as detailed in
a circular dated 22 December 2011; and

In May 2012, 79,556,747 shares of HK$0.1 each
were issued at a price of HK$0.1 per share upon
election by shareholders to receive shares in the
Company in lieu of the 2012 interim dividend in cash,
pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme as detailed in
a circular dated 24 April 2012.

All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing
shares in issue in all respects.

Number of shares Amount

RBEE k-]

'000 HK$'000

TRt FAL

30,000,000 3,000,000

4,068,421 406,842

1,808,187 180,819

48,109 4,811

89,393 8,939

6,014,110 601,411

31,349 3,135

79,557 7,956

6,125,016 612,502
NARIRA 2 EEFN T -

R=ZT—=F—F BREEEZE =T
—— &+ A=t BBE @R
a2 AR BEETE  UARR ARG
REBSUBM - ——ERARE
% KRRZRER0ABIT 2 BRI
31,349,119 F R EE0.18 T 2 K
m &

R-ZE——FHA BRREER-ZT
——FNA =A% 2 Bkl
AR EEE » AARARBRMHRER
SR =T ——FhERE% - AQF
BEBR0.1 T2 B8 381779,556,747
SRR EEO.A BT 2 IR

PrEBIMETZENESTEEERFEAE
BTN ZER S -

-2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S MRS e

For The Year Ended 30 June 2012 & Z—F——FA=1HILFE

30.

98

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Each of the Company, Kantone, a 54.98% owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Digital HK, a 70.70%
owned subsidiary of the Company, has a share option
scheme under which eligible persons, including directors of
the Company, Kantone, Digital HK or any of their respective
subsidiaries, may be granted options to subscribe
for shares in the Company, Kantone and Digital HK
respectively.

On 29 November 2002, the Company adopted
a share option scheme (the “Champion Option
Scheme”) which will expire on 28 November 2012.
The purpose of the Champion Option Scheme
is to attract and to retain quality personnel and
other persons and to provide them with incentive
to contribute to the business and operation of the
Group. Under the Champion Option Scheme, the
directors of the Company may grant options to
any directors, employees, consultants, advisors
in respect of business, operation, management,
technology, legal, accounting and financial matters
of the Company, its subsidiaries or affiliates or any
discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
include the aforesaid persons or a company
beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons as well as
customers and suppliers of the Group, to subscribe
for shares of the Company. The option granted by
the Company is exercisable at any time for a period
determined by its directors which will be less than ten
years from the date of grant, where the acceptance
date should not be later than 21 days after the date
of offer.

The exercise price per share (subject to adjustment as
provided therein) of the option under the Champion
Option Scheme is the highest of (i) the nominal value
of the shares; (ii) the closing price per share as stated
in the daily quotation sheet of the Exchange on the
date of grant, which must be a business day; and
(iii) the average closing price per share as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant. The maximum number of shares in respect
of which the options may be granted under the
Champion Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company at the date
of approval of the Champion Option Scheme. The
total maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options must
not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any
one grantee in any 12-month period is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
on the last date of such 12-month period, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. No
option has been granted by the Company under the
Champion Option Scheme since its adoption.

30. ERRAESTE
ANAT -~ RRQ A E54.98%H 2 K B A A
EBNMARREBT0.70%MKE 2 KB A 7&K
HEBSRBEETE - Bt AERAL
(BEAQAR - FR  BBEERESEIM
MBARZES)JEREREILDBIRER
ANTF - BRARBEESZRG °

R_ZTZ_F+—A=1+IHB KQF
R —EBRE S ([ 2 EBRER
2l]) - ZFEER=—FE—=F+—A
—+N\BEH - SEBRETEIZE D
ERRMREBEESABREMAL
EUSEERSHASE EBREEE
HEE - REBFEEERETE - AAF]
BEARFRARQE - HHEB A 7 ki
BARZER &8 T - flf - &
#Z eHkUBKEEZES B2 B
B BHEA T MEEEEmESES
ABIFEEM Ei At sk Flt AT E
HHEBZAR)  UERAEBZEE R
FEERHERE  URBAAGZK
e AAREEE 2 BRETRES
2 AR RS RAT(E - HEFTEEE 2
HARR - A R ARAEIR H A BReRT A
RF - mEH B EENEREL B H
%218 °

HEE BRI &R 2 B 2 AT
EE(FTRED 2 REEHBE) B0
HEE  (IRREEHARRLEXR)E
R 5 A RER TR SR KT
B Ri)BEREBARAEEXEZ
R 5P R RERPTR 2 SN F15
WifE  ZEFUGZSERE - REEE
B R BIR 2 BRI P8 K 2 B )
#E LR SBEAR RN EERERE
FHEIHLES BEETRAZ10% » BT
SRR AT M Al T 31T 2 X
BB ERATNSEBEAR B NRE %
TR 230% © TEAREARBBRRESL
HEZIERT » AEA+ (B A HIRE -
R B — AR AR BT R 2
BROBE - PMSBHARAEZ T
AHERRE —BZEETRN1% - B
EREAAZRE - AR BBARBIRE E B E
IR HIEARERE -
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

On 29 November 2002, Kantone adopted the share
option scheme (the “Kantone Option Scheme”) which
will expire on 28 November 2012. The purpose of the
Kantone Option Scheme is to attract and to retain
quality personnel and other persons and to provide
them with incentive to contribute to the business and
operation of the Kantone Group. Under the Kantone
Option Scheme, the directors of Kantone may grant
options to any eligible persons of the Kantone Group,
including directors, employees, consultants, advisors
in respect of business, operation, management,
technology, legal, accounting and financial matters
of Kantone, its subsidiaries or affiliates or any
discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
include the aforesaid persons or a company
beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons as well
as customers and suppliers of the Kantone Group, to
subscribe for shares in Kantone. Options granted are
exercisable at any time for a period determined by its
directors which will be less than ten years from the
date of grant, where the acceptance date should not
be later than 21 days after the date of offer.

The exercise price per share (subject to adjustment
as provided therein) of the option under the Kantone
Option Scheme is equal to the highest of (i) the
nominal value of the shares; (i) the closing price per
share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a
business day; and (iii) the average closing price per
share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant. The maximum number
of shares in respect of which the options may be
granted under the Kantone Option Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of Kantone at
the date of approval of the Kantone Option Scheme.
The total maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
must not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
Kantone from time to time. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual in any 12-month period is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of Kantone in issue on
the last date of such 12-month period, without prior
approval from Kantone’s shareholders. No share
option has been granted by Kantone under the
Kantone Option Scheme since its adoption.

30. BRETE =

R_ZEE-_F+—A=+NLH ' E8
M — a2 ([ B BB
2]) o ZBBEN —_E——F+—A4
—t+N\BEE - BRBRESEZEDN
ERRMRBEESABREMAL
EUSBERSHERER X REE
EXER - BIBFRBERETS - BB
BN HEBREBTAAEERALTERSY
B 2RSERER  HNBARH
BB AR X &8 B Bl
R S kMBEEZES - ES -
B - FERAA c KA EEEmES
= ABIEER Ll AL » sl it AL
EXBEEZAT WREREEZRF
LA fER - URBEEBZRD - iRt
2 ERIE TR E BT E 2 M b
1T - MEFTEEE 2 HifR - AR
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30. BRETE =

On 29 November 2002, Digital HK adopted a share RZZTZE_F+—A=+NIAB ' 8HE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

option scheme (the “DHK Option Scheme”) which
will expire on 28 November 2012. The purpose of
the DHK Option Scheme is to attract and to retain
quality personnel and other persons and to provide
them with incentive to contribute to the business
and operation of Digital HK and its subsidiaries (the
“Digital HK Group”). Under the DHK Option Scheme,
the director of Digital HK may grant options to any
directors, employees, consultants, advisors in respect
of business, operation, management, technology,
legal, accounting and financial matters of Digital HK,
its subsidiaries or affiliates or any discretionary trust
whose discretionary objects include the aforesaid
persons or a company beneficially owned by the
aforesaid persons as well as customers and suppliers
of the Digital HK Group, to subscribe for shares
of Digital HK. Options granted by Digital HK are
exercisable at any time for a period of up to ten years
from the date of grant, where the acceptance date
should not be later than 21 days after the date of
offer.

The exercise price of the option is the highest of ()
the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing price
per share as stated in the Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; and (iii) the average closing price per share as
stated in the Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant. The total maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options must not exceed 30% of the issued share
capital of Digital HK from time to time. The number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted to
any individual in any 12-month period is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of Digital HK in issue on
the last date of such 12-month period, without prior
approval from Digital HK’s shareholders. No option
has been granted by Digital HK under the DHK
Option Scheme since its adoption.
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31.

32.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 30 June 2012, capital contributions
from non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary in form of
systems and networks amounted to HK$12,232,000.

During the year ended 30 June 2011, the Company issued
1,808,187,168 rights shares at the subscription price of
HK$0.15 each on the basis of four rights shares for every
nine existing shares held. Lawnside had taken up and
accepted rights entitlement in full under the rights issue
in respect of 480,801,712 right shares. The subscription
price of HK$72,120,000 was settled by a redemption of the
Convertible Bond held by Lawnside.

During the year ended 30 June 2011, the Company
declared a special dividend by way of distribution in specie
of 11,250,000 shares of Digital HK and the fair value of
the shares of Digital HK at the date of distribution was
HK$19,463,000.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings, equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a bi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the new share issues and share buy-backs as well
as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

31.

32.

EXFRERS
BE-T——FAAZHALFE  FHERR
AR RARART A —HH B AR
#FE 312,232,000/ 7T °

HE_ZT——FNA=ZTHLEFE  AQERK
BEHENBRIRE RO ERTDBRERR G ZE
AE2%171,808,187,168 X AR R BB (B £0.157%5
T Z IR o Lawnside B 2 Sh A& B K 32 44
MR TE D B 2 480,801, 712X AX A 15 ©
72,120,00078 7T 2 R85 (& LA K& [B] Lawnside FT 5
B2 ARRESIAT -

BE-T——FAA=HBEILFE  ARAU
BEYHIRFEAEIREFRIRE % &11,250,000
PBREEERBRD - ZFHBEERMRHIKA
HA 2 N T{B{E 519,463,000 7T ©

EXEMRER

REBEEHEERN  IBRAEBERNZZESE
S TR AE - AN R RERE
BERA 2 REFEAFHEFIRSER
REE 7 BRERARE FFE—5 -

REBE 2 ERNEBRVITEERARAEAA
FEIEHEEAR - B EREEETRA - HER
REAEH -

AARESFHFFEHNELEE  (EREMZ
—#n EEGEREMRABERN 2 EAKARK
HEER - RIBEREE - AREBEBET
M mEROERBTHEXEEARES
& ATFEREEBENGRE -

—E2-—FFH | SERNREEERAT 101



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 M B HE M

For The Year Ended 30 June 2012 8&2=F—FA=THIFE

33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. BEAREIE
2012 2011
—E--F —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FAEL
Capital expenditure in respect of property, plant BRI - BE R EEEZS
and equipment and development costs for MR 7 BB AR 2
systems and networks EARRY
— contracted for but not provided in the —BEIHERNGA WEHRE
consolidated financial statements B - 81,900
— authorised but not contracted for —EERERFTLD 190,976 202,520
34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 34, KEHERH
The Group as lessee REBEERAEA

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future
minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises and motor
vehicles which fall due as follows:

RIRERTEHR - AEEZIEGRER YRR
MEZAAGHEEHE FRRERNES

RERZEIHERAT

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
Land and Motor Land and Motor
buildings vehicles buildings vehicles
T REF "E T RIEF "E
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TER FET FAEL
Operating leases which R FHER 2
expire: KETE -
Within one year —FR 5,152 2,220 2,953 2,629
In the second to fourth year B_FZEMF
inclusive A 2,725 2,823 5,554 2,888
7,877 5,043 8,507 5,517
Leases are negotiated for terms of one to four years and KERBZHAEFEN T —F2MF - AR

rentals are fixed for terms of one to four years.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group contracted
with lessees in respect of leasing of certain equipment which
is included in plant and machinery and telecommunications
networks, which fall due as follows:

TyE—FR2MFE 2 FHEE -

REBEESHEA

WIS ER - AEBEERERE TRB
(B Eates R BEMK) BEPITLAN B

BIR T -

2012 2011

—E-—C—fF —T——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHL

Within one year —ER 1,276 796
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FZ2ERFR 15,840 19,973
17,116 20,769
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35
During the year, the Group had the following transactions
with Lawnside, which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and an entity controlled by a director of the

Company:
Nature of transactions REME
Underwriting commission paid in respect of RAN BB 2
rights issue of the Company BEEE
Interest expense on Convertible Bond AR ES 2 FISFAX

These transactions were carried out after negotiation
between the Group and the respective related parties.

Details of the Convertible Bond due to Lawnside are
disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

The key management personnel are the executive directors
of the Company and the five highest paid individuals. The
details of remuneration paid to them are set out in note 9.

BEALRS
FR - AREEELawnside (AR AT FEERE K
AARESEH 2B BETTIIRS ¢

2012 2011

—B-—fF —T——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTER FET

= 4,978

140 800
LERGRAEEEEBMEANTERRE

e

F&ffLawnsideZ AT B HeHIEH N &7 & 175
W27 -

TEEBARRADRANTEERERRSH
AL o XN FREZHHF BN
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36. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 36. XRFZEBBEER

COMPANY

2012 2011
—E-C-F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiEx FAT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMRE 332 507
Available-for-sale investments AJE-HERE 628,148 628,148
Interests in subsidiaries N IEEUNETd: £ 3,926,149 3,910,923
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 R EAhBR K 30,289 65,404
Bank balances and cash RTEHRES 1,300 349
Total assets BERE 4,586,218 4,605,331
Other payables FERTE A BEFR 16,913 16,984
Convertible bond AR ES = 64,341
Overdrafts b - 51
Total liabilities B {EE%E 16,913 81,376
Net assets EEFRE 4,569,305 4,523,955

Capital and reserves WA e
Share capital ili%N 612,502 601,411
Reserves & 3,956,803 3,922,544
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RATHEB AEIHHER 4,569,305 4,523,955
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37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. TEHEAA

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June RZE——FR-_F——FA=1+H A2
2012 and 2011 are as follows: AT ENB AR BT :
Proportion of
Place of Nominal value of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Rl wYe BERIRAEE/ RAREEERT
WEAREH feny FMER BRAEELA TEER
2012 2011 2012 201
—B--f 2% ZB-Zf —Z-F%
100BESTSHOP.COM Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of e-shopping and
5 ERER2ET LakoET intemet-based activities

REETENRIBBRE

Aspire Management British Virgin Ordinary Ordinary 40.0% 39.5%"  Investment holding
Limited Islands US$2,200,000 15$2,200,000 REER

LREBRES LER2200000%T  ZiBAE2,200,0005 T

Big World International Samoa Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited* EEGHE U$$50,000 1S850,000 BB

BBRS0000FT  EREAE0000%TT

Bingo Profits Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 55.0% 54.3%  Investment holding
Islands EERIZT LERET REZER
ZEERRES
Briar International Limited Samoa Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Software development
EEGHS US$50,000 15$50,000 BRI
LER0000XT  EBRS0000ET
Champion (Cook Islands) Cook Islands Ordinary HK$1 Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited" ERkS LERIET LERER RERR
Champion Consortium British Virgin Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Strategic investment
Limited Islands/PRC EBRIER LR REMERE

AEGRREE/

Champion Interational Investments  British Virgin Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Strategic investments in advanced
Limited Islands/PRC 1$850,000 1S850,000 technology and e-commerce
FEEMZRE/PE  LBRS000ET  LERS00005T IOjeCts
ReEMERETEEEEL
REMRE
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37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 37. XEMBEAR-#
Proportion of

Place of Nominal value of nominal value of

incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities

Rilwye BRIRAEE/ RARBERRT
HWEAREHE mEy afEE BRAEEL A TEER

2012 201 2012 211
“g-of “T—F  C§-Zf  CTF
Champion Luck Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
International Limited 5 EBER2ET LTERET MERE
BERRERAR
Champion Million Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Industries Limited 55 EERVER LRRoAT MERE
HEEXBERAA
Champion Pacific Investment Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
BRAERAR % LERET Bl MERE
Champion Technology Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 Ordinary HK$1,000 100% 100%  Sales of general systems products
BEMRBRAT B Deferred Deferred and provision of senvices and
HK$1,000,000 HK$1,000,000 software licensing
LERI000ET  EERI000ET HE-RAGERR
IETERR1,000,000 7 ELHR1,000,00075T RURBE RN
Champnet Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Internet business
BEREBRAT Eh EERET LiRkET BREEE
Chief Champion Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1,000 Ordinary HK$1,000 100% 100%  Property investment
T2ERLA BE Deferred Deferred YRR
HK$10,000 HK$10,000

BERI000BT  EERI000ET
BERI0000ET  ETAI00007T

China Sports Network Limited Samoa Ordinary Ordinary 55.0% 54.3%  Development of gaming Software,
HEARERAT BEEGHE US$1,000,000 S$1,000,000 sports contents, sports websites
EER000000% 7 Ei#A1,000000% 7T and sports network systems

R mEER -
REEIREEALRG
Ly
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37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 37. TEMBAR-#

Proportion of
Place of Nominal value of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AL/ BRIRAEE/ FAREEERT
WEARER ey THER BAEELA TEER
2012 2011 2012 211
e . =
Chinese Paging Company Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1,000 Ordinary HK$1,000 100% 100%  Paging operations
B ENAR AT i Deferred Deferred BER
HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000
LERI 0BT EERI000ET
HEFER2,0000008 7 ERLERE2,000,00087T
Chinese Science & Technology Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Internet business
R RBERAR 3 ERER2ET LERoAT EREEK
Cyber Solutions Inc. Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary USS1 100% 100%  Internet business and strategic
BETHE EERIET LRRIEL investment
ERRERRERIRE
DIGITALHONGKONG. COM INC. British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 70.7% 70.7%  Provision of an e-commerce
LREBRES EERIZR LERIET platform for payment process
for global business
REHERREETHE
fERFTA
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM* Cayman Islands Ordinary Ordinary 70.7% 70.7%  Investment holding
YEEE HEHE HK$15,000,000 HK$15,000,000 BB
EBR15000,000% 7 Z0R15,000,000% 7T
DIGITAL COMMERCE LIMITED Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 70.7% 70.7%  Provision of an e-commerce
B EERVER L@RoAT platiorm and evaluation of
e-commerce opportunities
RUEBFHET ARG
SFHEEEE
Digital Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 70.7% 70.7%  Provision of an e-commerce
YERERKERAR 55 EER2ET LEkoET platform for payment process

for retail customers and e-mall
hased in Hong Kong
REERPRIESALN
ETASRIETHE
[EFTa
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37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 37. TEMBAR-#
Proportion of
Place of Nominal value of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AR/ BRIRAEE/ RARBEERT
HWELRER mey TER BRAEEL A TEER
2012 201 2012 211
“g-f 3% %-§ -P—F
Eagle Landmark Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Provision of treasury services
EEERRES LERIER TERIET REBBRE
ESP International Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Advertising and recruitment agency
EPEREEEEARAR  BF EER2ET TRET BERAEREAR
Good Holdings Limited Republic of Seychelles Ordinary Ordinary 55.0% 54.3%  Investment holding
ERBENE S$50,000 13$30,000 REZR
LERS0000%T  EBRS0000%TT
Happy Commercial Company Macau Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of documentation services
Limited b MOP25,000 MOP25,000 and amangement and business
EXBRAA EER LRk consultant
TP %25, 0008 SRPY25, 0008 REXHRERBERHER
e
Happy Union Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited h EER2ET LakosT NERE
BREERRAA
Hariela Kantone Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 55.0% 55%  Investment in telecommunications
Telecommunications &5 HK$10,000 HK$10,000 networks
Limited EERI0000BT  EBAEI10000ET REZERE
High Win Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USS1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding and strategic
LREBRES LERIXT TERIET investment
REARRRKBILRE
Honest (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary Ordinary 70.7% 70.7% - Provision of consulting services,
Offshore) Limited bl MOP100,000 MOP100,000 data processing and selling
EHEFREAERY) EER LER actvies
NG| P %100,0008 SRFI100,0008] RUERIRY - ERER
HERED
Hong Kong IT Alliance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Information technology
BREMMEEERAR AR EERVER LRRoAT development
EREARE
Hydro-Cable Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERERRES L E TRRIET RARR
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37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 37. TEMBAR-#

Proportion of
Place of Nominal value of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AL/ BRIRAEE/ FAREEERT
WEAREE ey THER BAEELA TEER
2012 2011 2012 211
—g-f “T—F  C§-Zf  TF
Internet Vehicles Limited Hong Kang Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of interet related services
EH@AEERAT 3 ERER2ET LakET REEEBEBERE
Kannet Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Interet operations
ERRRERAR X EER2ET LakosT LS
Kantel Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Investment in telecommunications
BRENEEERAT B EERVET LERET networks
RASERS
Kantone Holdings Limited* Cayman lslands Ordinary Ordinary 55.0% 54.3%  Investment holding
EREEERAR FESHE HK$750,457,595 HKS749,252,258 RERER
LER LER
750,457,595 70 749,252,587 7T
Kantone Paging Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 Ordinary HK$1,000 100% 100%  Trading of pagers and provision of
ERPNETERAR 36 Deferred Deferred messaging services
HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000 EEETKRREBERS
EER1,000E T LER,0008 7T
EER2,0000008 7T ERLRR2,000,00087T
Kantone (UK) Limited United Kingdom Ordinary Ordinary 55.0% 54.3%  Investment holding
HE £5,500,000 £5,500,000 REER
EBMR5500,000%8  LiHikR5,500,0005 %
Keen Pacific Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary USS 1 55.0% 54.3%  Provision of treasury services
EETEHS LERIZR TERER RASBITR
Kontone Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 55.0% 54.3%  Provision of treasury services
BREEERAA X ERRET Lakosr REBBRE
Kontone International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRERERAT 3 EER2ET LERIET RAER
KTT (Cook Islands) Limited* Cook Islands Ordinary HK$10,000 Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERkS BERI0000BT  HBE10000ET REHER
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37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 37. TEMBAT -2

Proportion of
Place of Nominal value of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AL/ BRIRAEE/ RAREEERT
HWELRER ey TER BAEELS TEER
2012 2011 2012 211
—§-2f . = i
Lucky (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of consulting services,
Offshore) Limited B MOP100,000 MOP100,000 research and development, and
HRORMEREZRE) EER Lk trading of cuftural products
BRAR FFI%100,0008] SRPFI100,000E] REBERYE - HRRAZ
WREEXER
Lucky Success Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited 3 EER2ET el Ve NERE
ERERARAR
Lucky Tone Investments Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited Eh EER2ET LakosT NERE
HRREERAR
M.C. Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Ordinary Ordinary 55.0% 54.3%  Investment holding
HElE £5,500,002 £5,500,002 REER
EIBMR5500,002%8  EER6,50000258
Marcotte Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary USS1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BELHS LERIER TERIET RERR
Multitone Electronics PLC United Kingdom Ordinary Ordinary 55.0% 54.3%  Investment holding, design and
HE £3,830,107 £3,830,107 manufacture of communication
EERI80107HE  LiRAE3,830,107545 systems and equipment
RERR R REERR
P&
Multitone Electronics Malaysia Ordinary Ordinary 55.0% 54.3%  Manufacture of communication
Sdn. Bhd. ERAED MR285,000 MR285,000 systems and equipment
LER TER EERERRRRE
WB500ERBEL 2850005 RAET
Mutiton Elektronik GmbH Germany Ordinary Ordinary 55.0% 54.3%  Distribution of communication
etz €1,022,584 €1022,584 systems and equipment
LB 0225848 EBIR1,022584B0 T PHBERTRRE
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Name of subsidiaries

WEARZH

New Telecomm Company
Limited
MABAERAR

Peak Vantage Limited

Pearl Delta Inc.

(QQKK.COM Limited

Shenzhen Hengyu
Science and Technology
Company Limited*

EERE (R BRAR

Silverstrand Investments
Limited

Smart Delta Inc.

Smart (Macao Commercial
Offshore) Limited

ERCEFRFEERE)
BRAF

37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued

37. FEMBLATE-#

Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/
operations registered capital
AL/ BRIRAEE/
ey THER
2012 2011
—g-of “3-F
Hong Kong Ordinary Ordlinary
B HK$6,000,000 HK$6,000,000
E1B1R6,0000008 T % iRRE6,000,0004 7T
British Virgin Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1
Islands/Macau EERIZT LTARET
EBERRES/ BN
Samoa/Macau Ordinary US$1 Ordinary USS1
EEGEHE/ R EERIER LakIET
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2
3 EER2ET LakET
PRC Ordinary Ordinary
& RMB24,000,000 RMB24,000,000
LiER ELil
ARH24,0000008  ARH24,0000008]
Samoa Ordinary USS1 Ordinary US$1
BEDEHE EERIET ERER
Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary USS1
EEDHS EERIER LakIET
Macau Ordinary Ordinary
B MOP100,000 MOP100,000
LiER ELil
JFI#100,0008] JBF9100,000E]

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held by the Company
RAREEERT
BAEELH
2012 211
e i
100% 100%
55.0% 54.3%
55.0% 54.3%
100% 100%
40.0% 30.5%:
55.0% 54.3%
55.0% 54.3%
55.0% 54.3%
B__FFH |

Principal activities

IEER

Trading in telecommunications
equipment and provision of
related services

EESERERER

RERS

Provision of treastry services

TR BB

Provision of treasury services

TRMETURT

Provision of e-commerce,
m-commerce and internet
hased activities

RUEETHE RIEER
BEBARERS

Investment holding
RAZR

Investment holding
RERR

Provision of treasury services

TRMETURTE

Provision of services, software
licensing and trading in
communication systems and
equipment

RS BHRTRRE
EREFERER
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37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued

37. FEMBLAT -~

Proportion of
Place of Nominal value of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AR/ BRIRAEE/ FAREECRT
HWELRER ey TER BAEELA TEER
2012 2011 2012 211
“g-of ST C§-Zf CTF
Success (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary Ordinary 55.0% 54.3%  Provision of consulting services,
Offshore) Limited il MOP100,000 MOP100,000 research and development and
IR £ EER Egl trading of cultural products
BRAE FFI%100,0008] SRPF9100,000E] REBERSE  BRRAZ
WREEXER
Top Gallop International British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited EEERRES LERIER TERIET REAFR
Very Happy International Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited B EER2ET TRET NERE
RERRERAR
Victory (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of services, software
Offshore) Limited il MOP100,000 MOP100,000 licensing and trading in
EZ(RPRFEERE) LER LR communication systems and
BRARE BFE1000008  RFIE100,0008] equipment
IR - BHETER
EEREZRLRR
Wollaston Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 55.0% 54.3%  Investment holding
EEDHS LRRIER LERIETL RARR
Y28.C0M Inc. British Virgin Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Provision of e-commerce,
Islands EERIZR EfIRE m-commerce and internet
LREBRES hased acthities
RUEEFHE  HHELR
BB RTRE
Y28.00M Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of e-commerce
RHEERAT B EERVER TERET m-commerce and internet
based activities
RUEEFHE  HHELR
ERRRTRE
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the Group.

The deferred shares, which are held by the Group, of each
of the above-mentioned subsidiaries entitled the holders
thereof to:

(@ a fixed non-cumulative dividend at the rate of 5%
per annum for any financial year of the company in
question in respect of which the net profits of such
company exceed HK$100,000,000,000; and

(b)  on a winding-up, a return of the capital paid up on

such shares out of the surplus assets of the company
in question after a total sum of HK$100,000,000,000
has been distributed in such winding up in respect of
each of the ordinary shares of such company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Save as disclosed, none of the subsidiaries had any debt
securities subsisting at 30 June 2012 or at any time during
the year.

37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 37.
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital
AL/ BRIRAEE/
HWELRER meny TER
2012 2011
. 2%
Y28 Innovations* Cayman Islands Ordinary HK$0.1 Ordinary HKS0.1
FSHS ERERIET LAR0ET
Zonal Care Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary US$2 Ordinary US$2
Islands/Macau EERET LakoET
RBHERRES /RN
* Directly held by the Company
# Wholly owned foreign enterprise for a term of 20 years
commencing from 17 October 2003.
A Kantone holds 72.7% (2011: 72.7%) equity interest in these
companies, hence they are accounted for as subsidiaries of

TEMBELRR -2

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held by the Company Principal activities
RAREEERT
RAREL A TEER
2012 201
~B-Zf 2%

100% 100%  Provision of e-commerce,
m-commerce, and internet
hased activities

REZFHZ  RHHER
BBBARERSE
55.0% 54.3%  Strategic investments in advanced

technology and e-commerce
projects, and provision of
treasury services

RERERETEEERL
RRMHRE - RIREEK
e

* HARBERRIE -

8 2EIECE  FHA-ZTE=F+A++t
H#E&T20%F ©

& ERARBRAZRERATR2I%(ZFT——F :
72.7%) 2 AR HUEARAR A AN E 2 I
BATF

mAKERA 2 Bt X K8 A B ZEERIS I
TESAAER :

fifi 52 A AP E AT o] — (B B B /2 2 45 F)
i 1 100,000,000,0007 7T - [AZ A
AUNERFE 5B 2 EREIERTERE &

(@)

RARIBRE  FRZERTHZ AT
£ i % 58 X 29 Ik 4 %8 100,000,000,000
BILE  BRARZRSREETRERZ
EWAn 2 BURIRA

ERANAR BB AR T ESERREARNFEE
EEABAVENERAREEEFEEANLL
EZWMBAE - EFRA 0 HWEEMBKHERR
ZFE—HFIH - Al S ERBRILE

B EXREEEIN BB ARR T ——FX
A=+ AsFAER RS EEMERES -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MR

RESULTS E 4
Year ended 30 June
BERA=THILEE
012 2011 10 2009 2008 207 2006 2005 2004 2003
Z§-2F CT—F CE-BE CRTAF CEENE CTRF CEENF CTTRF CTEME TR
HKS'000  HKSOO0  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO00
T TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn AT TEn
TURNOVER ] 3410999 3125455 3011768 2923108 3635049 3164287 2996668 2461710 2249968 1,6743%2
PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIITIES BEFORE #7381 B 5 £ /557
TAXATION
Profit from operafing actvites excluding KAHBTLER 7
other operating ftems EEREH 21886 161033 209951 403,130 994804 923140 762470 610013 468476 36790
Other operating tems HfpELER (104174 (@572 (5800 (9880) (3756 @07 (814 (36429 (10449 (127,387
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION BRiAIER 97,112 99,313 124151 104260 257278 832069 704346 573584 363984 240,163
TAXATION e 167 13 (121) (1,062 2,063 917 (85) (17) (704 (1429
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR TEEEF 97,819 95446 124030 103218 295215 822898 704261 573067 363260 238734
ATTRIBUTABLE T0: Feth -
QWNERS OF THE COMPANY KRFHEEA 62,478 56,763 88,649 TAG3 190456 626818 549994 458726 296550 191247
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERREER 35,401 36,683 35,381 26,588 64759 196080 154267 114341 66,730 A7.481
97,819 9446 124030 103218 25215 822898 704261 573067 363200 238734
DIVIDENDS Ra 24,261 43261 2004 19,968 48,112 96,686 73,096 59,867 55,304 27,604
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 30 June
RAA=1H
2012 201 010 2009 2008 207 2006 2005 2004 2003
Z%-If “5-—F -2-%F I CTEN\§ CERtE CTERF —E%nE CTIMF 5%
HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS(000
Tén Tér  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn  TEr TEn TiEn
TOTAL ASSETS BEBE 9321500 9349104 8967425 8871166 8446159 7657367 6453200 5561082 4945942 4280035
TOTAL LIABLITEES AEEE 405768 513452 569892 589361 630504 463346 359558 396,021 306934 768127
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS hg4s 8921741 8835652 8307533 8261805 7815605 7194021 6093642 5165061 4,589,008 351,908
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF KRAEBA
THE COMPANY [l R 1450716 7362232 7062217 6973345 6685006 6137672 5208760 4704867 4232113  3210,764
SUBSCRIPTION RIGHT RESERVE OF —-HLTHBARZ
ALISTED SUBSIDIARY DRERE - - - - — 4639 1,880 1,800 — —
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS SRR ER 1471025 1453420 1335256 1,308460 1130599 1061710 833082 458344 30689 301144
892170 8830652 8397533 8261805 7815605 7194021 6093642 5165061 4589008 3511908
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